
21-018 Annex A

From: 

To: 

Subject: 

Date: 

Attachments: 

Dear all, 

RE: MSG Transport Mitigation S106 Progress 

14 April 2 02117:43:36 

MSG Post Plaooiog Prniect Delivfrv Process pdf 
210310 MSG Sphere NR Response I etter pdf 
210310 MSG Sphere IO Response I etter pdf 

This is heads up to confirm this Friday's meeting will go ahead as scheduled. The intention is for 

momentum to run through MSG' response to the issued raised by TfL and Network Rail and to 

agree next steps. 

A copy of the letters issued is attached. 

Suggested agenda for Friday. 

1. Stratford Station

a. Additional Modelling (Pre-planning)

b. Post Planning Analysis

2. Frequency and Magnitude of Events

a. Event number limits

b. Clashes with London Stadium

3. Staffing Costs

4. Glare and Distraction

There was a request to cover other topics but including highway, public realm but my 

preference to now is focus on the topics above. 

Best wishes, 

Daniel Davies 

Principal Planning Development Manager (Planning Policy and Decisions Team) 

London Legacy Development Corporation 

Level 10 

1 Stratford Place, Montfichet Road

London 

E20 lEJ 

DD: 020 3288-
Mob: 

Email: danieldavies@londonlegacy.co.uk 
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From:
To: Daniel Davies
Cc: LON; 
Subject: RE: MSG Sphere - P6+8 Modelling Results
Date: 16 April 2021 13:58:02
Attachments: image002.png

image003.png
image029430.png
image036852.png

Hi Daniel,

Great and yes I shall do.

Thanks,

 
Principal Consultant

Clerkenwell House
23‑27 Hatton Wall
London
EC1N 8JJ

t  +44(0)20 
m +44(0)
w www.momentum-transport.com

This message contains confidential information and is intended only for he individual named. Momentum Transport Planning Limited accepts no
liability for the content of this email, or for the consequences of any actions taken on the basis of the information provided.  If you are not
the named addressee you should not disseminate, distribute or copy his e-mail. If you are not the intended recipient you are notified hat
disclosing, copying, distributing or taking any action in reliance on the contents of his information is strictly prohibited. If you have received this
email in error please notify the system manager or the sender immediately and delete this e-mail from your system. 
​
Momentum Transport Planning Limited Registered in England No. 8234059 Registered Office: 27 Mortimer Street London W1T 3BL

From: Daniel Davies <DanielDavies@londonlegacy.co.uk> 
Sent: 16 April 2021 13:12
To:  < momentum-transport.com>
Cc: LON < jacobs.com>; 
< londonlegacy.co.uk>
Subject: FW: MSG Sphere - P6+8 Modelling Results
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Hi 
 
Happy for this to go ahead without me, but could you please invite /loop in  (copied in)
 
Best wishes,
 
 
Daniel Davies
Principal Planning Development Manager (Planning Policy and Decisions Team)
 
London Legacy Development Corporation
Level 10
1 Stratford Place, Montfichet Road
London
E20 1EJ
 
DD: 020 3288 
Mob: 
Email: danieldavies@londonlegacy.co.uk
 
I work flexibly, so while it sometimes suits me to email outside of normal working hours, I do not
expect a response outside of your own.
 

 
Queen Elizabeth Olympic Park: a dynamic new metropolitan centre for London
For more information, please visit www.QueenElizabethOlympicPark.co.uk
 
 
 
 

From:  < momentum-transport.com> 
Sent: 16 April 2021 12:54
To:  < tfl.gov.uk>;  < tfl.gov.uk>;

 (Town Planner)' < networkrail.co.uk>; 
< networkrail.co.uk>;  < tfl.gov.uk>
Cc:  < momentum-transport.com>; 
< momentum-transport.com>; Daniel Davies <DanielDavies@londonlegacy.co.uk>
Subject: MSG Sphere - P6+8 Modelling Results
 
Afternoon,
 
Following on from the meeting this morning we would like to arrange a technical focused meeting as soon as
possible to present and then share the Platform 6+8 modelling results. Can you please let me know asap if the
necessary members of TfL and Network Rail can attend any of the following times next week:
 
Tues – before 1100
Wed – before 1500
Thurs – before 1000 or between 1230-1500
Fri – between 1100-1300
 
Thanks,
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Principal Consultant

    
Clerkenwell House
23‑27 Hatton Wall
London
EC1N 8JJ
       
t  +44(0)20 
m +44(0)
w www.momentum-transport.com
       

       
This message contains confidential information and is intended only for the individual named. Momentum Transport Planning Limited
accepts no liability for the content of this email, or for the consequences of any actions taken on the basis of the information
provided.  If you are not the named addressee you should not disseminate, distribute or copy this e-mail. If you are not the intended
recipient you are notified that disclosing, copying, distributing or taking any action in reliance on the contents of this information is
strictly prohibited. If you have received this email in error please notify the system manager or the sender immediately and delete this
e-mail from your system. 
​
Momentum Transport Planning Limited Registered in England No. 8234059 Registered Office: 27 Mortimer Street London W1T 3BL

______________________________________________________________________
This email has been scanned by the Symantec Email Security.cloud service.
For more information please visit http://www.symanteccloud.com
______________________________________________________________________

This communication and the information it contains is intended for the addressee only. It may be
confidential, legally privileged and protected by law. Unauthorised use, copying or disclosure of any of it
may be unlawful. If you have received this communication in error, please contact me immediately by
email or telephone and then delete the e-mail and its attachments from your system. This email and any
attachments have been scanned for viruses by Symantec and on leaving the London Legacy Development
Corporation they were virus free. No liability will be incurred for direct, special or indirect or consequential
damages arising from alteration of the contents of this message by a third party or as a result of any virus
contained within it or attached to it. The London Legacy Development Corporation may monitor traffic
data. For enquiries please call 020 3288 1800. 
London Legacy Development Corporation, Level 10, 1 Stratford Place, Montfichet Road, London, E20 1EJ. 

www.queenelizabetholympicpark.co.uk
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From: LON
To:  Daniel Davies
Cc:
Subject: RE: MSG Sphere - P6+8 Modelling Results
Date: 16 April 2021 16:05:58
Attachments: image002.png

image005.png
image008.png

Yes, I noticed after I responded.
Regards

 | Jacobs | Director of Transport Planning
M: +44 (0)  | jacobs.com
Cottons Centre Cottons Lane | London SE1 2QG | United Kingdom
www.jacobs.com | LinkedIn | Twitter | Facebook | Instagram
 

From:  < momentum-transport.com> 
Sent: 16 April 2021 16:04
To: LON < jacobs.com>; Daniel Davies
<DanielDavies@londonlegacy.co.uk>
Cc:  < londonlegacy.co.uk>
Subject: [EXTERNAL] RE: MSG Sphere - P6+8 Modelling Results
 
Thanks – seems like we’re almost there for Thursday
 

 
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
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From: LON < jacobs.com> 
Sent: 16 April 2021 16:02
To: Daniel Davies <DanielDavies@londonlegacy.co.uk>;  < momentum-
transport.com>
Cc:  < londonlegacy.co.uk>
Subject: RE: MSG Sphere - P6+8 Modelling Results
 

 
See below for my availability.
 
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
Subject: [EXTERNAL] FW: MSG Sphere - P6+8 Modelling Results
 
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
 
Tues – before 1100[   likely to be difficult
Wed – before 1500[   Possible 14.00 to 15.00. Otherwise not available.
Thurs – before 1000 or between 1230-1500[  Definitely OK
Fri – between 1100-1300[  Probably could work
 
Thanks,
 
 

 
Principal Consultant

    
Clerkenwell House
23‑27 Hatton Wall
London
EC1N 8JJ
       
t  +44(0)20 
m +44(0)
w www.momentum-transport.com
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From:  < tfl.gov.uk> 
Sent: 19 April 2021 14:43
To:  < momentum-transport.com>; 
< tfl.gov.uk>;  (Town Planner)' < networkrail.co.uk>;

 < networkrail.co.uk>;  < networkrail.co.uk>;
LON < jacobs.com>

Cc:  < momentum-transport.com>; 
< momentum-transport.com>; Daniel Davies <DanielDavies@londonlegacy.co.uk>; 

 < tube.tfl.gov.uk>
Subject: RE: MSG Sphere - P6+8 Modelling Results
 
All – let’s keep to 1330 – 1430 this Thursday.  Offer of follow-up sessions welcomed.
 
I’ll update in the week who from TfL can attend for all / part.
 

 

From:  < momentum-transport.com> 
Sent: 16 April 2021 16:21
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
 
Thanks  I’ll issue an invite for 1330-1430 to secure it in diaries and await your confirmation on Monday. I
expect a follow up will be required once you’ve received the data in any case.
 
Thanks,
 

 
Principal Consultant

    
Clerkenwell House
‑
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23 27 Hatton Wall
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
Sent: 16 April 2021 16:13
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
 

 / All – holding response until first thing next week.  We could probably cover 1330 – 1430 though
it would be  dropping off the call if other commitments can’t be re-arranged, there’s one or two
others we could add (though  is also away next week). If so there may well be possible detailed
queries we’d need to follow up in any event say early in the following week esp once  is back.
 
Will update on Monday.
 
Regards
 

 

From:  < momentum-transport.com> 
Sent: 16 April 2021 15:47
To:  < tfl.gov.uk>;  < tfl.gov.uk>;

 (Town Planner)' < networkrail.co.uk>; 
< networkrail.co.uk>;  < networkrail.co.uk>; 
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/LON < jacobs.com>
Cc:  < momentum-transport.com>; 
< momentum-transport.com>; Daniel Davies <DanielDavies@londonlegacy.co.uk>; 

 < tube.tfl.gov.uk>
Subject: RE: MSG Sphere - P6+8 Modelling Results
 
Thanks 
 
Network Rail can do Thursday between 1330-1500. Is there any way TfL can cover a 1330-1430 meeting? Or
Network Rail a 1300-1400?
 
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
Sent: 16 April 2021 14:46
To:  < momentum-transport.com>; 
< tfl.gov.uk>;  (Town Planner)' < networkrail.co.uk>;

 < networkrail.co.uk>
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
 
All,
 
For next week,  is away on scheduled leave.  is able to cover.  It looks as if the
only viable slot both  and I could do next week would be the Thursday 1230 – 1400.   is
available then too. 
 
If that works for others there may be one or two others we could look to invite as well, though it sounds
more as if there’ll be information shared to take away to review.
 

 
 

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
Cc: Chris Goddard
Subject: MSG - daylight info
Date: 26 April 2021 13:07:25
Attachments: 2f1a9270-54a4-45e3-9155-0bfd7d9822e1.png

MSG - daylight summary.docx

Hi Dan,
Further to our recent conversation, please find attached daylight summary text by Point 2.
 
In addition, access this link for a spreadsheet showing all daylight result measures side by
side for all properties https://we.tl/t-k9JvtHA5TZ
 
Please let me know if you have any queries.
 
Kind regards
 

Associate Director
direct: 020  
mobile:  
e-mail: dp9.co.uk
DP9 Ltd
100 Pall Mall
London
SW1Y 5NQ
telephone: 020 7004 1700 facsimile: 020 7004 1790 website: www.dp9.co.uk
This e-mail and any attachments hereto are strictly confidential and intended solely for the
addressee. It may contain information which is privileged. If you are not the intended addressee,
you must not disclose, forward, copy or take any action in relation to this e-mail or attachments.
If you have received this e-mail in error, please delete it and notify postmaster@dp9.co.uk
 
 
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
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18 January 2021 

 

Greater London Authority 

City Hall  

The Queen's Walk  

More London Riverside  

London  

SE1 2AA 

 

 

FAO    

 

Dear  

 

MSG SPHERE, STRATFORD (GLA REF: GLA/4752) 

 

Introduction 

On behalf of our client, Stratford Garden Development Ltd (the Applicant), we write in 

response to the Greater London Authority (GLA) post-stage 1 comments in relation to the 

applications for Planning Permission and Advertisement Consent (reference: 19/00097/FUL 

and 19/00098/ADV) (the Applications) for MSG Sphere. 

MSG Sphere will be a world leading, technologically advanced entertainment and music venue, 

which will strengthen London’s position as a world class visitor destination, and deliver a range 

of significant planning benefits: 

• Supporting Stratford’s Metropolitan Centre designation; 

• Supporting the growth and diversification of the visitor economy and night-time 

economy in Stratford and London; 

• Funding a new entrance to Stratford Station off the eastern side of Montfichet Road; 

• Delivering substantial economic benefits, including generating a significant quantum 

of employment opportunities in Stratford and across the UK. Construction of MSG 

Sphere would support up to 4,300 jobs annually – 1,000 of them on site. Once the venue 

opens, it would support 3,200 jobs every year – 1,200 of which are on site. All on-site 

jobs during the construction and operational phases will be paid at least the London 

Living Wage (LLW); 

• Providing significant financial contributions towards employment and training 

initiatives for local residents. The Applicant has made a commitment to ensure at least 

35% of onsite construction jobs and 35% of onsite operational jobs – from senior 

managers to venue operations staff – go to local people; 

• Delivering an exceptionally high quality, iconic landmark building;  

• Unlocking the accessibility of the Site by delivering four new public connections, which 

will significantly improve the accessibility of Stratford town centre and provide 

valuable connection points between East and West Stratford;  

Page 19 of 83

Reg.13

Reg.13



• Delivering high quality, inclusively designed publicly accessible open space, and 

financial contributions towards highways and landscaping improvement works along 

Montfichet Road and Angel Lane;  

• Providing a sustainable development which has excellent public transport accessibility;  

• Delivering a community programme, including the use of the small music venue for 

community events; and  

• Delivering a significant contribution towards Mayoral Community Infrastructure Levy.  

Response to the GLA pose-stage 1 comments 

The GLA post-stage 1 responses comprise the letter dated 13th November 2020 and specific 

comments on the energy assessment (memo dated 26th November 2020).  

The following information is enclosed with this letter to respond to the post-stage 1 comments: 

• Response to post-stage 1 comments (13th November 2020): 

o Response schedule prepared by DP9 (15th January 2021); 

o Fire Statement prepared by The Fire Surgery (9th December 2020). 

• Response to energy comments (26th November 2020): 

o Response note prepared by ME Engineers (January 2021); 

o Energy Assessment addendum prepared by ME Engineers (January 2021). 

Summary 

We trust this letter and associated enclosed information ensures the GLA are in a position to 

fully support the Application and ensure the significant benefits associated with the proposed 

development are delivered at the earliest opportunity: 

Please contact Chris Goddard or  at this office if you have any queries or wish to 

discuss any matters in further detail.  

 

Yours sincerely, 

 

 
 

 

DP9 Ltd. 

 

 

Cc Daniel Davies, Planning Officer, London Legacy Development Corporation 
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 and I would be happy to discuss this with you and Anthony when convenient?
 
Best Wishes
 
Chris
 
 
 
Chris Goddard
Board Director
direct: 020 7004 1757 
mobile: 07712 300 728 
e-mail: chris.goddard@dp9.co.uk
DP9 Ltd
100 Pall Mall
London
SW1Y 5NQ
telephone: 020 7004 1700 facsimile: 020 7004 1790 website: www.dp9.co.uk
This e-mail and any attachments hereto are strictly confidential and intended solely for the addressee. It may contain information
which is privileged. If you are not the intended addressee, you must not disclose, forward, copy or take any action in relation to this
e-mail or attachments. If you have received this e-mail in error, please delete it and notify postmaster@dp9.co.uk

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
confidential, legally privileged and protected by law. Unauthorised use, copying or disclosure of
any of it may be unlawful. If you have received this communication in error, please contact me
immediately by email or telephone and then delete the e-mail and its attachments from your
system. This email and any attachments have been scanned for viruses by Symantec and on
leaving the London Legacy Development Corporation they were virus free. No liability will be
incurred for direct, special or indirect or consequential damages arising from alteration of the
contents of this message by a third party or as a result of any virus contained within it or
attached to it. The London Legacy Development Corporation may monitor traffic data. For
enquiries please call 020 3288 1800. 
London Legacy Development Corporation, Level 10, 1 Stratford Place, Montfichet Road, London,
E20 1EJ. 

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
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During our last call you reminded me that you are waiting for a response and
suggested way forward to secure the significant public benefit of the artistic
content on the MSG Sphere, and restrict advertising to certain times of the
day. I set out below a draft condition which MSG would be prepared to accept
which hopefully addresses this issue.
 
‘With the exception of displaying the name of the venue, the external surface
of the MSG Sphere shall be used solely for the display of artistic content for
not less than 60% of the time that it is operational. Commercial content may
only be displayed between the hours of 07.30-09.30 am, 17.00-20.00pm and
22.00-23.30 pm, and between these periods, for not more than 5 minutes in
any 15 minute period’
 

 and I would be happy to discuss this with you and Anthony when
convenient?
 
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
This e-mail and any attachments hereto are strictly confidential and intended solely for the addressee. It may
contain information which is privileged. If you are not the intended addressee, you must not disclose, forward,
copy or take any action in relation to this e-mail or attachments. If you have received this e-mail in error, please
delete it and notify postmaster@dp9.co.uk

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

This communication and the information it contains is intended for the addressee
only. It may be confidential, legally privileged and protected by law. Unauthorised
use, copying or disclosure of any of it may be unlawful. If you have received this
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From: Daniel Davies
To: Chris Goddard
Cc:  Anthony Hollingsworth;  
Subject: RE: MSG Sphere artistic content
Date: 30 April 2021 15:57:18
Attachments: Suggesed Sphere Conditions.docx

Hi Chris,
 
Thanks for your suggestion.
 
Attached are some suggested changes. Theirs some background to my approach which will
hopefully provide the context for why the amendments are more reasonable they that might
first appear.  I’ve included a couple of other sphere display conditions for your perusal..
 
Note that the list is a starter for ten. The planning committee will ultimately decide and may take
a different view to what has been suggested here.
 
I’m around for the rest of the afternoon if you want to discuss, otherwise, see you  Wednesday
next week.
 
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
 
I work flexibly, so while it sometimes suits me to email outside of normal working hours, I do
not expect a response outside of your own.
 

 
Queen Elizabeth Olympic Park: a dynamic new metropolitan centre for London
For more information, please visit www.QueenElizabethOlympicPark.co.uk
 
 
 

From: Chris Goddard <chris.goddard@dp9.co.uk> 
Sent: 29 April 2021 08:59
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Item TfL Ref Topic TfL Comment Response

1 2 Impact on network capac ty T L is still concerned that the 300 event days per year  even at be ow full capacity of the stadium  will 

have sign ficant adverse impacts on capacity of pedestrian access routes  station ingress/egress and 

nternal capacity  especia ly on coordinat on of event days w th surrounding venues

The Legion model ing presented in the TA as audited by Network Ra l does not raise 

sign ficant adverse mpacts n the reasonable worst case scenarios that have been assessed  

The CONOPS sets out he process o avoid s mu aneous events days / arrivals / departures 

with the London Stadium

The est mated annual breakdown of event capacit es and frequenc es is shown in Table 5 4 of 

the Transport Assessment  This shows that ypical events w ll at ract crowds of around 8 000  

with larger concerts of between 15 000 and 17 500 people ike y to occur up to 100 times a 

year  Maximum capacity 21 500 events will be extreme y rare  The commercial practicalit es of 

managing a venue of th s type mean that these requencies are un ikely to be exceeded  

However  due to the need to retain commercial flexib lity and attract the best acts  MSG are 

not ab e to comm t to specif c restrictions on event frequencies

2 3 Impact on network capac ty Mitigation required for localised congestion within the stat on  part cularly with respect to f ows on the 

stairs between platform levels

Mitigation of impacts has been provided in the form of the new stat on entrance  

MSG accepts the requirement to deliver and und way ind ng  s gnage and event over ay 

( im ted to barriers and s gnage and exc uding physical in rastructure works) for congestion 

relief and c rculation enhancement to he p manage the stat on during main event peak 

periods  These enhancements w ll be defined dur ng the sensitivity mode ling undertaken post

plann ng  Add tional analysis of Platforms 6+8 has been undertaken as a start ng po nt to th s 

process are provided to TfL

3 4 Impact on network capac ty Mitigation required for add tional operational risks such as platform clearance times and potential need 

or ex ens ve use of congestion control measures on event days and unmodel ed scenar os (late evening 

re urn traff c and future years)

The Appl cant w ll work with TfL post planning to carry out further sensitivity tests of the 

station modell ng and mit gate through operational management (event capacity  signage  

wayfind ng  spectator commun cat ons  congestion control barriers and staff management) 

where needed  Addi ional ana ys s of P atforms 6+8 has been undertaken as a starting point 

to this process

MSG are prepared to enter nto d scussion with TfL and Network Rail over a level of fund ng 

or stat on staff which is commensurate to the scale of impacts and s milar to the eve s 

provided by other recent developments

4 5 Impact on network capac ty Mitigation required for the ike y levels of h ghway and kerbspace demand or coaches  min buses  taxis  

pr vate hire  and private cars in different scenar os

The highway designs will be refined and progressed hrough he s278 agreement in 

conjunction with the highway authority and TfL  This wi l be n conjunction with a detailed 

Traffic Management Plan

5 6 Railway Agreements A range of Asset Protection Agreements (APAs) and other ra lway industry specif c requ rements and 

approval processes will be required with NR and TfL

The applicant is committed to enter ng into an Asset Protection Agreement w th NR and TfL 

as is typical for a development with the potential to impact on the railway and its operations 

and has demonstrated a comm tment to fo lowing railway ndustry specif c requirements and 

approval processes  Th s comm tment was formally acknowledged by the Network Rail 

Eastern Region System Rev ew Panel n the r letter to NR Project Sponsor   of 

28 Ju y 2020  The Applicant is committed to complying to TfL approval process where TfL 

deem necessary

6 7 Railway Agreements T L is concerned of significant transfer of risk for stat on operation onto operators  Applicant must be 

aware of s gni icant operat ng challenges at the station due to MSG and propose m tiga ion for these 

mpacts

In relat on to the transfer of risk onto operators  MSG do not have a rem t to manage r sks 

within the stat on but can support Network Ra l  TfL he other operators in this respect  When 

the project en ers the detai ed design phase post planning determ nation  a forum dedicated 

to managing the m tigat on of operat onal impacts wi l be nitiated  Th s will prov de the right 

opportunity for detai ed d scussion  scoping the Operat onal Change required and scoping the 

r sk for formal trans er at the r ght t me  MSG will work closely w th TfL and MTREL to review 

and de ine the necessary change to the operational plans  It shou d also be noted that any 

transfer of hazards wi l on y occur where this adheres to the CSM regu ations and w ll be 

assessed by the Independent Assessment Body at that time  The Applicant has consu ted 

with TfL and MTREL Station Management includ ng Mart n Bendry  MTREL Head of Stations 

and Gary Ashe  TfL Stratford Station Manager  They have contr buted directly to he HAZ D 

workshop wh ch was able o capture the r specific concerns n relation to the risks associated 

with the development so this hazards might be formal y recorded n the Hazard Record and 

mitigations proposed  n line with CSM regu ations  The Ra l Safety Report in the planning 

appl cation provides further detail  The applicant is also aware that Martin Bendry and Gary 

Ashe were consu ted by Network Rail n their deve opment of an Integration Paper which set 

out how the proposed new station entrance can be integrated w th the existing Stra ford 

Sta ion In rastructure and Operations  

7 8 Railway Agreements T L wants urther d scussion w th applicant  LLDC PPDT  NR and other stakeholders on the most 

effect ve planning and financ al mechanism to mi igate any ra lway risks

The applicant has worked and is working to fac lita e these discussions and these discuss ons 

are underway and on going

8 10+11 Event Operations T L challenged the statements in TA and ES that events reach ng maximum capacity being occasional 

and the rarity of clashes w th London Stad um events and midweeks events  

Examples of these include 6.2 2 The Central Line from London therefore receives a direct permanent 
ow impact on a receptor of h gh sensi iv ty  Th s equates to a moderate/minor e fect  Given that full 

capacity events w ll be occasional and on y a proportion of them will be on a weekday  this is considered 

not signif cant.  and 6. 2  Figure 6.11 shows that the Central Line operates at 100% capacity from 
17:15 to 19:45  However  th s is primar ly as a result of the London Stadium  t is only from 19:30 to 

19:45 where the Proposed Development occup es a significant port on of the capac ty  In this 15 minute 

period  he Proposed Development results in a 39% up ift in demand  Th s is a direct permanent high 

mpact on a receptor of high sensit vity  This equates to a major adverse ef ect  This is considered 

sign ficant  However  given the short term nature of the additional mpact and the rarity of th s scenario 

occurring, the impact is considered to be minor adverse and not s gni icant.

This has been taken into account e ther when he ES effect fal s into the minor/moderate 

effect category or when he impact occurs for very short periods of time  t is reasonable to 

cons der the scenario context and reality of it occuring n these cases  This is supported by 

the sample event calendar presented w thin he TA

9 12 Event Operations Controls need to be in p ace to avoid the occuring of the absolute worst case  scenar o when events are 

clashing between MSG Sphere and London Stadium on Boxing Day

MSG understands from its discuss ons with local stakeholders that Boxing Day is a 

chal eng ng day for Westf eld and the station operation  Any MSG Sphere events for Box ng 

Day w ll be at times and capacit es that meet safe y criteria establ shed w th Westf eld  the 

Sta ion operators and other local businesses and rat fied via the SAG

10 13 Event Operations Relationship with London Stad um and O2 events and advance management w ll be an issue or any 

scenario and event size  appropria e con rols must be sought

Controls proposed in CONOPS  wh ch are also proposed to be incoporated into the s106

11 14 Event Operations TA assumption of average attendances of 43 500 cannot be rel ed upon  assessment need to be based 

on the current consent for 60 000 attendances

The assessment s based on 60 000  however consider ng the real ty of these events is 

mportant to note

12 15 Event Operations T L notes previous pub ic responses by E20 Stad um and West Ham Un ted that Stratford Stat on could 

not accommodate visitors rom bo h venues n some football event scenarios

E20 as operators of the London S adium are responsible for representing the needs of all their 

tenants  inc uding West Ham FC  as well as event owners and contractors  E20 have 

conf rmed that they are satisf ed that the proposed pre event forum and the m tigat on 

measures suggested by MSG are suff cient and MSG will work with E20 and LLDC to ensure 

these provisions are secured via appropr ate p ann ng conditions

13 17 Event Operations T L argues that MSG spectator arrival time is not ent rely n applicant s control to deliver  thus late start of 

events cannot be relied upon to mit gate r sks  Especial y because this w ll a so mean that events  end 

(depend ng on durat on) could c ash wi h the t me when train services are heavily reduced or f nished

It is noted that moving the start t me s not going to change a l spectators arrivals t mes  and 

this has been considered in the assessment w th the assumption that 50% of guests would 

take the advice wh le the other 50% would travel as usual  This s prosposed in the infrequent 

circumstance of a clash with London Stadium football  especial y if it is a last minute f xture  

and so while a later f nish may be proposed  it can be treated as a one off  rather than a 

regular ssue  It is acknowledge that sufficient post event transport capacity will sti l be 

required in these scenar os  

14 18 Event Operations Note that engineering work on the ra lway s planned over a year ahead and ma ntenance calender 

shou d be cons dered when planning events

MSG is aware of the need to plan eng neer ng work and is ully supportive of advance 

notif cation of dates and planning for these occas ons and the specific events scheduled to 

take p ace during any period of disruption on the network

15 19 C ash with LS TA Table 5 1 for samp e sports event ca endar (Nov 18 to Oct 19) may underestimate l ke ihood of 

clashes with London Stadium  espec ally midweek events

It is acknowledged hat there cou d be more London Stadium ootba l matches as a results of 

domestic and european cup compet tions  however the purpose of Tab e 5 1 s to show a 

realistic event calendar for contextual purposes rather than an absolute worst case

16 21 C ash with LS Need to p an on a bas s of potent al range of clashes with ootba l events at London Stad um where 

weekend  matches cou d fa l on Fri  Sat  Sun  or Mon

It is noted that football matches could be on any day of the week

17 22 C ash with LS Also no e that midweek football events w ll only be known at a few weeks  notice and consquent impacts 

on re arranged league f xtures (though in requent) w ll occur on midweek evenings and clash with MSG 

events could have acute and adverse mpacts on transport

MSG is aware of the intr cac es of planning a venue schedu e with sports f xtures and has 

engaged with E20 to understand the part cular cha lenges for the London Stad um  The pre 

event planning process covers all events coincidences  however they occur  There are  as TfL 

states  many var ables inf uencing the football calendar  The processes of pre event planning 

wi l ensure each of these coincidences can be assessed in context  

18 24 C ash with LS Need to p an on the assump ion that on average at least one midweek football match w th c ash with high 

capacity MSG event every other ca endar month or staf ing and event p anning

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

19 27 Event Ca endar Clar fy the intent of shared attraction  and how th s relate to Immers ve Res dency category A shared attrac ion  is a standalone event but one that can be held on the same day as an 

mmersive res dency  However  t w ll not be held at the same time of day as an immersive 

residency and will likely be a matinee event

20 27 Event Ca endar Clar fy if the 70 touring concert and 35 immers ve would be every Friday and Saturday even ng (there ore 

about 100 events and event days) or n block periods of consecutive days (thereofore to reach capped 

105 total)

MSG would require the f ex bil ty for either of these options

21 27 Event Ca endar Clar fy if sports category wou d take the form of 5 ndividual days across a ca endar year or 2/3 

consecutive days on evening and weekends

MSG would require the f ex bil ty for either of these options

22 29 CONOPS There has yet to be part cu arly detai ed engagement with T L on a l the scenarios or issues  or w th TfL 

or inter aces w th London Stad um  but it is welcomed n princip e that the app icant will commit to 

extensive work to amend and work up fu l event management p ans and contingency plans  with a 

commitment to facil tate communication and collaboration  and at end QEOP Licens ng Operat onal 

P anning and Safety Group (LOPSG)  Newham Safety Advisory Group meeting  and regular event 

plann ng meetings

The CONOPS was deve oped after extensive engagement w th local stakeholders and has 

been shared  eedback received and upda es made  It contains comm tment o con inue his 

engagement n order to capture and articu ate a l operational in erfaces and dependenc es 

with key stakeholders  These will be drawn together n the Venue Operat ons Manual  which 

wi l be deve oped iterat vely post planning approval  through to and beyond he opening of the 

venue

31 CONOPS Key concerns ident fied by TfL to be clari ied and addressed include: role of command and control; 

handover; primacy; cont ngency p ann ng; forward event planning and role of statutory / licensing 

unct ons; Montf chet Road management; and mob lity ass stance

Command and Control  handover  primacy etc w ll be key componen s of the post planning 

plann ng and coordinat on with neighbouring bus nesses and captured n the VOM

23 33 CONOPS In dea ing with extreme event scenar os  whi e the role of Newham SAG is referenced n Scenario 1  t s 

not clear if an MSG or LS Newham SAG s considered in Scenario 2 and 3

LB Newham SAG will have oversight of MSG Sphere operations in all circumstances  

24 34 CONOPS The m tigat on of dedicating the new t cket hall for MSG spec ators only (even for a limited time) s not 

supported  needs to be clarified and agreed or TfL and rail operators as part of overall stat on operation 

that it could be accepted or managed  Based on their experience  this would be impractical and 

unworkab e

This has been proposed during egress to support the efficent f ow of spectators into the 

station when it would a so be a less desirab e opt on for background users to join this queue 

or travel aga nst the flow  It s also considered to be a v able proposed in management terms 

due to the alternatives avai able to background users  However  the Appl cant wi l work with 

T L to ref ne and agree the most suitab e operation for this entrance includ ng working on 

alternat ve arrangements

25 35 CONOPS CONOPS contradicts the TA and Leg on model ing when talk ng about l ne load splits The TA should be used when considering ine spl ts

26 i CONOPS m tigat on T L urges LLDC to seek obl cat ons on the applicant to ensure use of measures to prevent concurrent 

events that wou d cause unacceptab e impacts

MSG agree that the measures shou d be ocused on unacceptable impacts  passenger/guest 

safety being the pr me criteria

27 ii CONOPS m tigat on Applicant should commit to the proposed annual event breakdown through a capped programme of event 

types  There is a precedent in LLDC area rom LS in relat on to types of major events to prov de 

reassurance of control to reduce and m tigate impacts (and from elsewhere in London such as n 

Emirates and Tottenham stadia)

The London Stad um  Emirates and To tenham venues are stadia  with much higher 

capacities and not Arena that are designed and commerc ally pred cated to host more event 

types  Capping all event types is unnecessary  MSG agrees that conditions should be agreed 

that focus on passenger and guest safety pr mar ly  as well as res dent amen ty

28 iii CONOPS m tigat on Indicative event ca endar or an understanding/assumption of concert breakdown would inform transport 

operator staffing requ rements for staff provision

To be commercia ly viab e the venue must be ab e to programme the venue w thout 

unnecessary restr ctions  Staff ng requirements for any event at MSG can be ident fied during 

the post planning plann ng phase and the pre event planning forum and agreed notification 

processes wi l ensure adequate time is provided to a l part es to enact agreed operating 

procedures and supply of resources  nc uding manpower

29 iv CONOPS m tigat on Establ sh how Newham SAG for e ther or both MSG and LS could operate in coinc dence scenarios This wi l be part of the post plann ng p ann ng process and ref ect the evolv ng context of 

staging events across LB Newham and the QEOP  

30 v CONOPS m tigat on Def ne the arrangements for forward p ann ng and participat on with other venues w th LLDC  LS  and 

Newham Counc l secured  and whether CONOPS proposed 9 month advance period wou d be adequate 

or inter ace with LS events

This wi l be part of the post plann ng p ann ng process and ref ect the evolv ng context of 

staging events across LB Newham and the QEOP  

31 vi CONOPS m tigat on Encourages best endeavours to prevent concurrent events and avoid potent al for coincidences 

especial y for concerts and major events in the summer

E20 as the operators of the venue will be d rectly involved in the post planning planning phase 

and will coord nate with all of the r tenan s  includ ng WHFC

32 vii CONOPS m tigat on For arrangement of future events  TfL receives f xtures schedu e for the fol owing season from football 

authorit es several months n advance which ncludes all potential cup and replay weeks  T L is notif ed to 

attempt to inform fixture scheduling  primarily where long term weekend rail engineering closures are 

known and planned n advance of football or event schedu e  This approach for early engagement may 

help to address schedu ing of MSG high capacity events and avoid poten ial clashes  T L w ll attend the 

programming orum that s offered

Agreed and to be addressed post planning

33 viii CONOPS m tigat on Rail operators will prov de details of future rail engineering closures Agreed and to be addressed post planning

34 ix CONOPS m tigat on Fur her development of CONOPS and venue management p ans Agreed and to be addressed post planning

35 x CONOPS m tigat on Requirement for crowd and queuing management (sta f and phys cial provis on) outside of the stations 

that applicant will prov de and manage

Agreed and to be addressed post planning
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36 xi CONOPS m tigat on Any event that requires mod fied entry lows into Stratford Reg onal stat on needs to be agreed with ra l 

operators well ahead of the da e

Agreed and to be addressed post planning

37 xii CONOPS m tigat on Informa ion and wayf nding (temporary and permanent) espec ally at key decis on po nts within Stratford 

and surrounding areas

Agreed and to be addressed post planning

38 36 Line Load ng Impacts T L is concerned on the abili y of Jubi ee and Central ines to cope with additional demand  particular y 

after evening events when MSG spectators are departing

This has been assessed nad presented with n the TA  wh ch shows that the Jubilee and 

Central lines can cope with additional demand after even ng events  

39 37 Line Load ng Impacts Clar fy how CLAM s interpreted or Fri  Sat  and Sun (12 1 8) Demand on a Friday  Saturday and Sunday are typ cal y lower  and therefore the weekday 

CLAM assessment is considered to be the worst case scenar o

40 37 Line Load ng Impacts Clar fy 12 3 3  12 3 9  12 5 3  12 5 8  12 6 7  12 6 18  12 7 4  12 7 14  12 9 3  12 10 9 and 12 11 6; t s 

not been demonstrated that 00 15 f nish can be accommodated on Fri and Sat  The impact of such fin sh 

on Night Tube has not been assessed  Nor has it been demonstrated that 22 45 fin sh on Sunday can be 

accommodated

Event f nish times now proposed at 2300 Mon Sat and 2230 Sun  with exception of when a 

ater f nish time s beneficial in c ash scenarios

41 37 Line Load ng Impacts Clar fy 12 3 14 and 12 6 23 if calculat on a so takes account non MSG customers diverting to Elizabe h 

Line to avo d disruption  Is this still a plausib e m tigat on for MSG customers?

The ca cu ation does not include non MSG customers diverting to Elizabeth Line o avoid 

disruption  however  the signif cant amount of capaci y provided by the E izabeth Line and 

im ted background demand at this time of night suggests that this wou d be plausible 

mitigation

42 37 Line Load ng Impacts F gure 12.10 (and others) – clar fy the flow rate required into the station during such coincidence 
scenarios  In the 2245 2300 15 minute period this suggests just over 4000 people boarding Central l ne 

n 15 minutes (alongs de just under 3000 board ng Jubilee) in respect to stat on entrance capacity and 

avai abi ity and internal circu ation  as we l as need for stop and ho ds outside the station

With the lower background demand in the stat on at his t me of day  ingress flow rates into 

the stat on will be h gher than the 300 per minute modell ng in the PM peak and is likely to 

be 450 500 people per minute  Th s equates to 7 000 peop e entering the stat on in a 15 

minute period  Although the ine oad ng and crowd model ing assessment are separate  this 

suggests that they broad y al gn

43 37 Line Load ng Impacts Clar fy 12 6 6  the overall theoretical station clearance t me might not be unchanged  note that he time 

at which peop e are able to access services and their abil ty to make onward connect ons may be 

affected

There is only a small (<500) number of peop e between the two sets of spectators who would 

be de ayed and wou d travel in the ear y part of the 2315 2330 period rather than the ate part 

of the 2300 2315 period  It is unl kely that the 0 10 minute de ay would affect the abil ty to 

make onward connect ons at this time

44 37 Line Load ng Impacts Clar fy 12 6 10 tra ns wi l operate at capac ty for 30 m nutes because of (rather than longer than w thout) 

MSG  Figure 12 15  12 16  and 12 7 demonstrates that services are not operat ng at capacity at all now 

with just LS Concert

To clar fy  the trains are operating at capacity for the stated period because of the total 

demand  whether this s made up of background  MSG or London Stadium  It is correct that 

they are not operating at capacity in F gure 12 15 12 17

45 37 Line Load ng Impacts Clar fy 12 8 9  TfL does not currently run one empty train rom North Greenwich Southbound during post 

event period to accommodate demand from O2  There are currently no p anned trains from North 

Greenwh ch in off peak per ods  There has not been a planned North Greenwich starting service 

corresponding with O2 events f nishing  It should be clari ied f this has been ncluded n any assessment 

by the appl cants

Rail capacity is taken rom CLAM outputs provided by TfL  No al erations have been made to 

requencies at North Greenwich

46 39 Line Load ng Impacts Issue of impact on sensitive receptors and the frequency of co ncidences need to be addressed as set 

out above

This has been taken into account e ther when he ES effect fal s into the minor/moderate 

effect category or when he impact occurs for very short periods of time  t is reasonable to 

cons der the scenario context and reality of it occuring n these cases

47 40 Line Load ng Impacts 12 16 Sub scenario 7: Jub lee EB  Figures 12 44 and 12 45 demonstrate that a clash w th LS foo ball 

results in Jubi ee demand being at / near / over capacity around an hour or more than it wou d be with 

just LS ootba l during the PM peak period; Central EB – Figures 12. 6 and 12. 7 demonstrate that a 
clash w th LS football resu ts in Central demand being at / near / over capacity around an hour or more 

than it would be w th just LS football during the PM peak per od

This s correct  however MSG only uses a small percentage of the available capacity 

compared to the background demand and the London Stadium  meaning he magnitude of 

mpact of MSG spectators is ow  The results also show that trains are already busy or this 

period and MSG only ex ends the busy per od by 15 m nutes (1915 1930)  Also  the ikelihood 

of this scenario even occur ng (fu l attendance at both venues on a weekday even ng) is very 

ow  The samp e event ca endar suggests only one c ash with a weekday football match per 

year  and even then the expected London Stadium attendance wou d be we l be ow full 

capacity ( 45k) as attendance data in TA Table 6 1 shows

48 Line Load ng Impacts 12.17 Sub-scenario 8: Central EB – Figure 12. 9 demonstrates that in a scenar o where MSG clashes 
with LS concert demand  MSG demand ifts demand above capacity for around an hour and half longer 

than would be the case w th just LS Concert

This s correct  however the mpact of MSG spectators is ow  A so  the likelihood of this 

scenario (fu l attendance at bo h venues on a weekday) is low

49 Line Load ng Impacts 12.19 Sub-scenario 6a: Jub lee EB (North Greenwich) – Figure 12.5  demonstrates that in a scenar o 
where MSG clashes with and O2 and LS Concert event demand is ifted noticeably closer to capacity 

than would otherwise be the case with a scenario with just O2 and MSG or just O2 and LSC

The change n demand re ative to capac ty is noticeab e but not signif cant and the 

proportional mpact of MSG spectators is low  A so  the likelihood of this scenario (fu l 

attendance at both venues on a weekday) is ow

50 Line Load ng Impacts 12 20 Sub scenario 6b: O2 demand has not been included in this analysis of North Greenwich station as 

wou d be expected  contrary to po nt 12 20 3  Need ess to say  12 55 demonstrates that a scenario with 

MSG and LS Football demand at capacity for an around an hour onger than it would be otherwise with 

just LS ootba l demand  Therefore  there wou d be nsuf icient capaci y to a so accommodate O2 

demand

Graph 12 55 does nclude O2 demand  however  there is a typo wi hin the graph abe ling; the 

pink bars should be Background+ MSG+ LSF + O2

51 41 Line Load ng Impacts Un ess spectators are able to travel ear ier  which may not be pract cal particularly on weekday even ngs  

or there is enhanced travel behaviour management  or physical interventions at Stratford station  it s 

ike y that more spectators will be delayed both on the network arriving at the station  and also eaving 

the stat on passengers eft behind at other stations waiting to board services  The mit gation offered in 

clashes with London Stadium events n part cular to alter MSG start times may not necessari y give the 

comfort of control to TfL that MSG spectators would not arrive at Strat ord in a peak period

Changing event tim ngs wou d be suppor ed by significant spectator commun cations 

designed to change v sitor travel behaviours to m tigate this r sk and the assessment 

undertaken to date is based on a reduced 50% take up of travel advice to ensure a robust 

assessment  It should also be noted that hese are worst case assessments based on full 

capacity attendances  The sample event ca endar suggests only one c ash with a weekday 

ootba l match per year  and even then the expected London Stadium attendance would be 

we l be ow full capacity ( 45k) as attendance data n TA Table 6 1 shows

52 43 Line Load ng Impacts T L ran sens tiv ty analysis on Remote Stations  mpacts  Th s work found that some stat ons had 

noticeable increases in average otal passenger delay (hours)  These s ations will also often be the focus 

of other events

Liverpool street  109 hours

Ox ord Circus  67 hours

Water oo  44 hours

London Br dge  33 hours

Highbury & Islington  29 hours

Euston  21 hours

Not ng that changes to remote stations are not requested or proposed by TfL  the Appl cant 

wi l work with TfL when preparing the venue spectator communicat ons o encourages specif c 

travel behaviours to avoid off site impacts

53 47i Line Load ng Impacts • MSG  O2 demand causes line loading to exceed O2-only levels and reach 100% for two 15min 
periods  growing the l kel hood of increased O2 clearance t mes

• MSG  O2  LS Concert - demand is above O2-only evels with over an hour of demand being at / near 
100% of capacity  This eaves l ttle / no room for service perturba ion and a s gni icant number of 

passengers still waiting to board services at 0000

• MSG  O2  LS Football – demand is above O2-only levels or a s gnif cant period being at / near 100% 
of capacity for 45 minutes  grow ng the ikelihood of ncreased O2 c earance times at North Greenwich  

Fur hermore  a scenario where late inishing LS Football (e g  extra time and penalties) is a possib lity is 

ike y to shift this ssue later or similar reasons to the point made for MSG + O2 + LS Concert

see response to TfL comment 47 below

54 47ii Line Load ng Impacts • Late-finishing MSG  O2 sees line loading ift above what is usually seen going through North 
Greenwich between 2330 and 0015  There cou d be reason for concern that this might affect the end of 

clearance of O2 vis tors and there ore m ght increase the ike ihood of these passengers not being ab e 

to make onward connections home

• MSG  O2  LS Concert (with Late MSG) scenarios see high demand for Jub lee ine services. 
Demand is at / near to 100% for 1hr 30m ns and is above demand levels seen for O2 only scenarios for 

over an hour. These scenar os – unless properly mitigated – are likely to cause extended c earance 
t mes for O2 visitors and therefore an increased chance that they are not able to make it home  

• Late-Fin shing MSG  LS Footba l  O2 sees line loading lift above what is usually seen (with O2-only) 
going through North Greenw ch between 2300 and 0015  There could be reason for concern that th s 

might affect the end of c earance of O2 vis tors and therefore might increase the l kel hood of these 

passengers not making onward connections home  This cou d also get worse if LS Football event were 

also to fin sh late as is par ial y demonstrated in figure 12 41 n TA 2 1

Services are not at capac ty dur ng any period with the exception of when a concert at the 

London S adium and even s at MSG Sphere and the O2 Arena

In add tion  this s the only scenario where demand exceeds 80% of capacity (noting the small 

exception of MSG+LS Football+O2 where 85% of capacity is reached)  Th s sugges s that 

there will not be an impact on guests making onward connections or on clearance t mes

A so  see response o TfL comment 47 below

55 47iii Line Load ng Impacts • MSG only scenarios have greater demand for Central line WB later in the evening than LS Football 
events

• As displayed in TA f gure 12.10 when football finishes late a MSG  LS Football scenario results in 
demand for Central WB from Stratford being at capacity for 30mins from 2245  This late high demand s 

ike y to ncrease c earance times and thus the chance that vis tors are unable to make onward 

connections and get home

• MSG  LS Concert and MSG  O2  LS Concert scenarios see exceptionally high demand for Central 
ine WB services  Demand is at / near to 100% or 1hr 30mins and s above demand levels seen or LS 

Concert only scenarios for over an hour  These scenar os are ikely to cause significant delays to visi ors 

accessing services and herefore increasing the chance that they are not ab e to make t home

see response to TfL comment 47 below

56 47iv Line Load ng Impacts • Demand in a MSG-only ( ate finishing) scenar o sees demand over LS
Concert scenario in late periods of 2345 onwards  Whi st with n available capac ty  th s wou d mean 

many visitors ike y not mak ng onward connections and there ore an ncreased ike ihood of visi ors not 

mak ng it home

• MSG  LS Concert scenarios w th a ate MSG event see demand at / near / over 100% of capacity for 
over an hour  This h gh demand s over what is seen w th LS Concert beyond 2330hrs  This ate h gh 

demand leaves ittle / no room for perturbation and w ll mean visitors will face increased ike ihood of not 

getting home after an event if their journey requires an onward connection

• Were there to be a c ash between a ate finishing footba l match and MSG ate event (as shown TA 
F gure 12 14 (p273) clearance times of both events would l kely be a fected  Vis tors wou d face 

ncreased risk of not making further connections and getting home

see response to TfL comment 47 below

57 47v Line Load ng Impacts • MSG  LS Concert scenarios resu t in demand for Jubilee line services out of Stratford being higher 
than what s seen currently with just LS Concert events for around an hour  Furthermore  demand is at / 

near capaci y for half an hour  Th s is likely to cause c earance time that wi l increase the l ke ihood of 

passengers accessing services la e into the evening and consequent y increase the chance of them not 

getting home

see response to TfL comment 47 below

58 47vi Line Load ng Impacts • Demand in a MSG-only ( ate finishing) scenar o sees demand over LS Concert scenario in late periods 
of 2345 onwards  Wh lst within available capacity  this wou d be a large number of v sitors likely not 

mak ng onward connections and therefore and ncreased ike ihood of visi ors not mak ng it home

• MSG  LS Concert scenarios w th a ate MSG event see demand over what is seen w th a LS Concert-
only scenario from 2345 0015  This ate h gh demand eaves l ttle room for perturbat on and w ll mean 

vis tors wi l face increased likelihood of not get ing home a ter an event f the r journey requ res an 

onward connect on

• Were there to be a c ash between a ate finishing footba l match and MSG ate event as in TA Figure 
12 12 (p271) c earance times of both events would ike y be affec ed  Visitors would face increased risk 

of not making further connections and gett ng home

see response to TfL comment 47 below

59 47 Line Load ng Impacts Table 1 of scenarios where concerns are raised As explained within the Transport Assessment  events which clash with the London Stad um 

wi l be rare and ull capacity clash events will be rarer still  In order to maxim se our guest 

exper ence  MSG have a strong incentive to l mit the number and scale of even s which clash 

with the London Stadium and are committed to working closely w th the London Stadium and 

other stakeho ders to avoid such clashes where practicably possib e

The CONOPS expla ns the measures that MSG w ll commit to n order to min mise and 

mitigate c ashes and it is proposed to nclude the key enets of the CONOPS in the sect on 

106 agreement to secure th s  To re terate these measures  MSG will:

• Attend event p anning forums to discuss and plan for upcoming events, including a spec fic 
orward planning forum to manage the programming of events at MSG Sphere  London 

Stadium and other QEOP venues;

• Share in strict confidence potent al event bookings to avoid unnecessary event 
coincidences;

• At the date of release of the football fixtures or the upcoming season, MSG wi l meet with 
the London Stad um nominee on the forward p ann ng forum to denti y key fixtures and map 

these onto the MSG Sphere forward programme  mindful that for these home ixtures  times 

and dates can change due to broadcasting demands [or cup ties]; and

• When the London Stadium adv ses MSG nine months or more in advance of a contracted 
event at the stadium with an anticipated attendance of more than 50 000  MSG wi l app y a 

capacity cap for MSG Sphere events  contracted after this point  of 18 000  If less than nine 

months  notice s provided or the antic pated London Stadium concert s less than 50 000 

capacity  MSG can programme a full capacity event on that date and adjust the event timings  

f requ red

A ongs de th s  MSG have committed to a range of restricted capac ties at dif erent opening 

hours  and these are set out n the Transport Assessment and CONOPS

60 48 Event finish and clearance times Applicant must consider the avai abil ty and amenity of post evening event routes for guests enjoyment  

Keep in mind hat weekend Night Tube s not ntended to handle large numbers of people especia ly from 

hard  event fin shes  There wou d need to be associated increased sta fing n place to meet the stat on 

Congestion Control Emergency Plans (CCEPs)

Event f nish times now proposed at 2300 Mon Sat and 2230 Sun  with exception of when a 

ater f nish time s beneficial in c ash scenarios
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61 49 Event finish and clearance times The app icant will need to expect that  w thout mitigation and sign ficant management  MSG visitors and 

any background users will be held for onger outs de the station  with consequent mpacts on he dura ion 

of the t me for the overall clearance of the station and of the areas outside the station used or queuing 

and the respective management of a l those areas

The Appl cant is aware of the expected wa ting and c earance times through the Legion 

mode ling undertaken

62 50 Event finish and clearance times The TA and CONOPS set out a c earance time that genera ly require a low rate into Stratford station at 

300 people per minute – where the applicant’s proposed external crowd management genera ly directs 
this to three entrances – Platform 12, Southern Ticket Hall and Mezzanine Ticket Hall. However, 
pedestr an model ing or Scenar o D at 11 7 2 sets out that a maximum of 150 peop e per m nute are 

required to enter the sta ion here during the start of the weekday PM peak  and the exact sp it and 

distribution to di ferent entrances or via the TCLB and the Mezzanine and Southern entrances would 

need to be c arified and agreed

The rate at which spectators are assumed to enter the stat on varies depending on the 

scenario (event s ze  background demand  event c ashes)  The entrance sp it in Scenario D 

was based on assumptions made regarding mode share  spectator des inat ons and the r ex t 

point rom the Sphere  In he PM peak Legion model  flows were evenly distributed among all 

ava lable entrances  The 150 peop e per minute is the maximum f ow accommodated through 

the new station entrance  while he 300 peop e per minute accounts or all entrances

63 51 Event finish and clearance times TA 11.3.32 – 11.3.3  set out varying clearance times, though it is not clear f a reference to events with 
ittle background demand c earing in 20 minutes re ers to an 8 000 venue capacity at 300 people per 

minute  or a h gher capac ty at a higher flow rate of people per minute  The appl cant shou d c arify this  

The c earance times extend o 35 minutes and up to 45 minutes n combination with London Stadium 

event crowd c earance

A l clearance times stated in these points are based on full capacity events  A 20 minute 

clearance t me is assumed when the base demand in the sta ion s low  so MSG spectators 

enter the station at a higher low rate  The 35 minute clearance t me s based on the PM peak 

Legion modell ng results and inputs  A 45 minute egress time is assumed when MSG flow into 

the stat on is restr cted due to clashing with the London Stadium

64 52 Event finish and clearance times The late fin sh assessment did not take into account onward ravel and connections  regard ess of the 

potent al for a significant per urbation (temporary l ne c osure) or planned closures and cannot be 

accepted by TfL

Event f nish times now proposed at 2300 Mon Sat and 2230 Sun  with exception of when a 

ater f nish time s beneficial in c ash scenarios

65 53 Event finish and clearance times TA 12 3 7 and 12 3 13 sets out hat in some scenarios visitors can be cleared faster than 45 m nutes  

and encouraged to immediately depart – but this s challenged f there are other constraints especia ly on 
the time period  acceptable f ow rates to enter the stat on and pinchpoints with n the station and platform 

capacity and will depend on the specif c destinat ons of passengers to particu ar lines if spl t across 

different egress routes from podium

The rate at which spectators are able o clear the area depends on a number of factors 

ncluding time of day  event size  and background demand; as well as perturbation scenarios 

or any other internal station issues preven ing spectators to enter the station at any time  

However  a 45 minu e clearance time is know to be poss ble given the London Stadium has 

been observed to acheive th s despite hav ng much greater demand

66 54 Event finish and clearance times The assessment cons ders that MSG spectators wi l be aware of last services  or wou d make other 

travel arrangements such as using a taxi or to stay overnight  but this wou d not be acceptable to all 

MSG spectators or an option eas ly avai able to other background users unaware of MSG events  This 

wou d g ve rise to sign ficant reputational risk to the venue operator  and ncrease the r sk being 

transferred to transport operators and local authorit es or police to manage any mpact from passengers 

unable to access the public transport network

Event f nish times now proposed at 2300 Mon Sat and 2230 Sun  with exception of when a 

ater f nish time s beneficial in c ash scenarios

67 56 Event finish and clearance times T L could not accept events inishing in th s location beyond 23 00 given the time requ red for guests to 

eave the venue  leave the podium in a controlled manner  enter a station  and make reasonable onward 

connections

Event f nish times now proposed at 2300 Mon Sat and 2230 Sun  with exception of when a 

ater f nish time s beneficial in c ash scenarios

68 57 Event finish and clearance times For other uses on site w th soft inish  other measures for pr vate cars  taxi  and pr vate hire wou d need 

to be addressed

To be addressed in s278 and de ailed opera ional plans

69 60 Event finish and clearance times T L conducted line capacity assessment  Event f nish time of 23 30 will clear on both ines but result n 

sign ficant number of passengers board ng at a time where it s un ike y that they wi l make onward 

connections and w ll s ruggle to get home on Monday to Saturday

Event f nish times now proposed at 2300 Mon Sat and 2230 Sun  with exception of when a 

ater f nish time s beneficial in c ash scenarios

70 62 Event finish and clearance times An event fin shing any later than 23 00 on Sunday wou d fa l to c ear be ore the last tubes depart 

Strat ord station

Event f nish times now proposed at 2300 Mon Sat and 2230 Sun  with exception of when a 

ater f nish time s beneficial in c ash scenarios

71 64 Event finish and clearance times t should not be assumed that late even ng services could easi y be enhanced without s gnif cant 

contributions by appl cant and engagement with transport providers

Event f nish times now proposed at 2300 Mon Sat and 2230 Sun  with exception of when a 

ater f nish time s beneficial in c ash scenarios

72 i Mit gation for event f nish and clearance t mes i  Apply fin sh times of 2300 Monday to Saturday and 2230 Sunday to Sphere events  besides non

transport amen ty measures  in he interests of MSG visitor and background passenger convenience and 

the late evening capacity of the station and transport network

Event f nish times now proposed at 2300 Mon Sat and 2230 Sun  with exception of when a 

ater f nish time s beneficial in c ash scenarios

73 ii Mit gation for event f nish and clearance t mes i  TfL urges LLDC to seek obligations on the app icant to prevent concurrent events with London 

Stadium that would cause unacceptable impacts  This s considered reasonable and necessary because 

other major event operators have precedence

Key tenets in CONOPS to be brought nto s106 to secure measures to avo d clashes

74 iii Mit gation for event f nish and clearance t mes ii  Work with TfL and MTR  NR  and transport operators to assess event ngress and egress times for 

station operat on model or PM peak and late even ng  and availabil ty of entrances and gate ines for 

CONOPS

Applicant to work wi h TfL and other stakeholders to undertake sensitivity testing post

plann ng

75 iv Mit gation for event f nish and clearance t mes v  Regu ar liaison w th transport forward plann ng teams to identify engineering closures and m tigat on 

measures

Agreed

76 v Mit gation for event f nish and clearance t mes v  Remote stations  no specific stat on physical mitigation s to be sought  the effect on these stations 

wi l be of relevance for network management

Noted

77 vi Mit gation for event f nish and clearance t mes vi  Reasonab e endeavours for forward planning orum or ma or event co ncidences across London Agreed

78 vii Mit gation for event f nish and clearance t mes vii. MSG’s abi ity to inform MSG vis tors of delays and inform decis on making on routes to use Agreed

79 viii Mit gation for event f nish and clearance t mes viii  Review and monitoring of impacts at stations and influenc ng route cho ce  and need for any further 

nterventions

Agreed  with further in erven ions limited to operat onal and management measures

80 65 Rail Network Impact There are some minor errors in TA Section 3 of the tab es of peak hours and frequenc es for London 

Overground and DLR  wh ch may ref ect the progress of the TA and where changes have been made to 

serv ce patterns  or where services ca ling at Maryland also call at Stratford Regional  It is expected that 

this should not have a fected the analysis but may need to be clari ied through any further engagement 

on impact  The DLR ro ling stock programme w ll rep ace two thirds of the existing leet and provide 10 

addit onal trains to expand capacity and support populat on and employment growth across the network  

DLR customers w ll benef t from more frequent and rel able journeys from 2023  It is intended to make 

other up ifts to both Stra ford International and Stratford Canary Wharf branch as part of the roll ng stock 

programme  but the exact scope is open to change

Noted

81 67 Station crowding and journey times The impact of a fu l capaci y event on Stra ford station s approx mate y equivalent to four years of 

orecast background growth  However  the e fect of the proposed mit gation does not a ways outweigh 

the impact of the increased demand in a l areas of the stat on

The proposed measures sufficient y m tigate the impact of MSG  as supported in Network 

Rail s mode ling aud t  Sens tiv ty testing s proposed post p ann ng to re ine other operational 

management measures

82 68 Station crowding and journey times The commentary summary in TA Section 13 10 when referring to Scenarios 3&4 and 5&6 and their 

analysis genera ly refer to the comparisons between each scenario performing without and w th the 

proposed Plat orm 12 entrance  as opposed to compared to Scenario 1 2023 base

This w th and w thout  comparison is intended to show the benef t of the new stat on entrance 

as m tigat on  however compar son to the base is also presented

83 69 Station crowding and journey times Determinat on of likely e fect n the ES comb nes sens tiv ty of receptors and he magnitude of mpacts  

T L is concerned how his has been presented and assessed for both components

See below

84 72 Station crowding and journey times T L disagrees w th the impact level or 7 receptors  often by a b g marg n The grouping of routes presented n the ES was spec fically reques ed by TfL  TfL requested 

the format in wh ch these were presented and the ES uses this format  As there s no existing 

guidance on identify ng the sensitivity of receptors with n a s ation  percentages were defined 

based on usage of each area  Were these areas to expand  these percentages would also 

have o change  Th s was or the assessment of journey times only as crowding was based on 

LOS  The figures quoted by TfL in their letter seem to re er to the metric used in the ES or 

magn tude of impact  not sensitivity of receptor  

85 74 Station crowding and journey times T L is concerned with the approach of determin ng magnitude of mpact  The evel effect should be more 

severe w th higher level of crowd ng (LoS D to E is worse than moving rom A to B)  Add tionally there 

shou d be a considerat on of the s ze of area a fected and or how long

The approach n the ES is consistent with the method used in he ES for the Bank Stat on 

Capacity Upgrade  wh ch was spec fically referred to as a suitable example by LLDC when 

scop ng the ES

86 75+76 Station crowding and journey times Journey time benefits analysis from Legion should be compared against the 2023 base (scenario 1)  This 

assessment should provide an ndication of the number of passengers from the base that are af ected to 

give a sense of he absolute number of passengers delayed in each ocat on

TA Table 13 6 does compare journey time changes to the base  as well as between the with 

and without the new station entrance in order to show the benef t of th s entrance  The 

abos ute number of passengers affected s presented within the ES

87 81 Stratford Stat on Des gn T L are concerned that insuffic ent capacity improvements for the development opening year or future 

year will be gained by the addit on a one of another entrance onto a constrained part of the station 

without d rect access to a l areas  without consider ng other constraints of the layout within the station

The proposed measures sufficient y m tigate the impact of MSG  as supported in Network 

Rail s mode ling aud t  Sens tiv ty testing s proposed post p ann ng to re ine operational 

management measures  NR have exist ng improvements that are already funded that also 

ncrease capac ty in key areas that are to he benefit of all users

88 83 Stratford Stat on Des gn The indicat ve t cket hall des gn does not meet NR or LU stat on standards for runoffs  with the minimum 

distance between stairs and gate ine not achieved in the in tial des gn  Th s should be a consideration in 

the detailed des gn stage with a departure from standards requ red if a compliant run o f cannot be 

achieved and to assess which sta ion standards will apply

It is considered that this can be addressed at detailed des gn stage

89 84 Stratford Stat on Des gn Areas of high density from platform 1/2 to proposed p atform 12 under all scenarios due to 180 degree 

turn requ red by passengers  This movement offers poor way ind ng and unfamil ar passengers may add 

urther congestion  This should be considered n the detailed design stage

It is considered that this can be addressed at detailed des gn stage

90 85 Stratford Stat on Des gn Locat on of he l ft does not provide suf icient queuing space and conf icts w th the stair run off area It is considered that this can be addressed at detailed des gn stage

91 87 Stratford Stat on Des gn Should higher entry f ows be realised  the eastern subway w ll become a bott e neck with the potential for 

queue ng on the stairs  Operat onal or infrastructural measures may be required to demonstrate how this 

r sk wi l be mitigated against

Sensit vity test ng proposed post p ann ng to re ine operational management measures

92 88 Stratford Stat on Des gn The proposed entrance does not provide easy access o all parts of the station  especia ly the Jubilee 

Line

Due to the layout of Stratford Station  not all ticket ha ls provide easy access to all parts of 

the stat on  However  it is considered that a comprehensive signage and wayf nding strategy 

can l mit the possib e impacts of th s

93 89 Stratford Stat on Des gn The de ivery approach and day to day opera ion management needs to be agreed  and ongoing 

maintenance and all o her necessary agreements to be entered into

Noted

94 90 Stratford Stat on Des gn If the entrance s to be operated by LU  then as a m nimum the fol owing wi l need to be agreed:

• Entrance s bu lt to LU Standards / Requirements by the Developer / Developer’s Agent
• Entrance s fitted out by the Developer / Deve oper’s Agent
• Comms, Fire, Premises, Mechanical, Electrical, Fire, Pumps and Drainage and other services are 
included in fit out works undertaken by the Developer / Developer’s Agent
• Commissioning, Handover and Bringing into use is undertaken as a joint exercise by LU and the 
Developer / Developer’s Agent
• Any outstanding snagging is comp eted by the Developer / Deve oper’s Agent as a joint exerc se with 
LU

• Operating costs or the new entrance (staffing and maintenance) are covered by the Developer or an 
agreed time period – for sta fing TfL will seek a per od of 10 years for staffing, for maintenance an 
equivalent period to be agreed subject to further discussion w th NR and TfL

The Sect on 106 Agreement includes for an obl gation for the Applicant to develop the new 

station entrance in line w th the appropriate standards and regulat ons  The Appl cant 

cons ders that any final decision regarding the del very model for new station entrance should 

be subject to risk assessment and as such he applicant would not l ke to be drawn on the 

most appropriate method of del very at this stage  The applicant wi l want to ensure that 

decisions regard ng how works are contracted should be made w th due consideration for the 

best interests of the safe operat on of he station  

It is acknowledged hat additional staffing would be requ red to operate the proposed station 

entrance and help manage event flows  In the context of the signif cant unding be ng provided 

or the station enhancement  alongs de new revenues that MSG guests would generate for 

T L  the sca e and duration of the costs currently being reques ed are cons dered too high  

However  MSG are prepared to enter into discussion with TfL and Network Rail over a evel of 

unding for station staff wh ch s

commensurate to the scale of impacts and s milar to the eve s provided by other recent 

deve opments

95 91 Stratford Stat on Des gn LU wi l be able to guide the applicant through the governance / assurance / de ivery / bringing nto use / 

taking into main enance process  hrough he Deve oper Projects Pathway Compliance Strategy

Noted

96 92 Stratford Stat on Des gn Agreement in the station CCEPs with support from LU and MTR will also be needed as with changes 

incorporated in the Command and Control systems – the deve oper will need to accept and honour these 
arrangements

Noted

97 93 Stratford Stat on Des gn The maximum f owrate on he 2 way stairs from p atforms 6 & 8 to the Eastern Subway ncreases rom 38 

passengers metre/minute in the base to 59 passengers/metre/minute under Scenario 4  This exceeds the 

spec al events planning standard  The plann ng standard in both NR and TfL guidance for a two way 

stairs is 28 passengers/metre/minute  The plann ng standard in both NR and TfL guidance for Special 

Events or a two way stairs s 43 passengers/metre/minute

Additional analysis of Platform 6+8 has been carr ed out which allows or comparisons at 

different planning standards  It shou d be noted that the normal planning standards are 

already exceeded in the base scenario and are not the level at which the station already 

safe y operates

98 95 Stratford Stat on Des gn Our assessment ident fies several areas of concern  such as: pla form clearance times; the sta r 

capacity; and the evel of eft behinds  It should be noted that a though the stair capac ty and the level of 

eft behinds do impact on the platform c earance times  they are also concerning n the r own right

Sta rs have been modelled in the Legion models  However  f the mode led f ow rate on the stairs exceeds 

the normal day stated planning standards stair f ow rate then either there will be unacceptab e sta r 

crowding or there wi l be more platform / subway crowding then shown in he Legion model

This analysis or Platform 6+8 has been carr ed out and does not show an significant mpact 

on clearance times or s air crowd ng

99 96 Stratford Stat on Des gn There has not been an assessment of passenger volumes against the normal planning standards 

capacity  T L has carried out i s own analysis compar ng scenar o 4 (2023 base + MSG evening ngress 

and matinee egress w th new t cket hall) and scenario 6 (2023 base + MSG even ng ingress w th new 

t cket hal ) against the 2023 base  This analysis combines the four current staircases together into one 

block w th stair directions as n the TA and Legion mode ling to assess the overall sta r capacity ava lab e 

or Platform 6 & 8  This indicates that the number of minutes when the demand is greater than the normal 

capacity wou d grea ly increase

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

100 100 Stratford Stat on Des gn It shou d be noted that add tional Legion coding  to a d flows on stairs  had been added to scenario 4 but 

not to scenar o 1  Therefore  the dif erences between the situat on and the base is likely to be greater 

than stated here  This means that even if the stairs cou d over an extended per od of ime even ually deal 

with the demand  there will be h gher p atform crowding levels and longer stair c earance times leading to 

onger platform clearance times  Th s is in addition to the concerns with the stair capacity

Additional analysis of Platform 6+8 has been carr ed out which aligns the coding of the base 

and with deve opment models  This still does not show a signif cant mpact on crowding evels 

or clearance t mes

101 101 Stratford Stat on Des gn The level of impact of left behinds should be presented as part of an assessment of p atform clearance 

t mes

This analysis or Platform 6+8 has been carr ed out and does not show an significant mpact 

on clearance times

102 102 Stratford Stat on Des gn There may a risk of MSG spectators al ghting from arriv ng trains remaining on the platform for longer as 

they make their way to the Eastern subway  rather than exiting v a the central and London end staircase 

we ls  and which would require sign ficant management  Th s may make it harder for the driver to see a 

clear train despatch corridor on their in cab CCTV disp ays

Fur her ana ys s has been carried out for Platform 6+8  not account ng for any p atform 

mprovements  which suggests the ncreased demand can be sa ely accommodated  It also 

suggests there will be m nimal de ays when us ng the eastern subway

103 103 Stratford Stat on Des gn There are proposals for decluttering of Platform 6 & 8 – which would depend on the relocation of the MTR 
control room to an area not yet identified  and to assess the benefit of increased space for passengers 

to wait or c rculate  however this may sti l not address the capacity of sta rs and clearance of plat orms n 

between tra ns  There are no other ike y short to medium term phys cal nterventions to enhance 

P atform 6 & 8 platform and stair capacity

Fur her ana ys s has been carried out for Platform 6+8  not account ng for any p atform 

mprovements  which suggests the ncreased demand can be sa ely accommodated
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104 104 Stratford Stat on Des gn The platform s shared between LU and MTR  and it wi l need to be assessed if there should be one 

standard app ied  where Network Rail SCPG does not match LU S1 371 on plat orm calculations and 

vice versa

Noted

105 106 Stratford Stat on Des gn t w ll need to be expected that there will be an element of r sk n place to allow p atforms and staircases 

to operate  and resultant impact on train operation  to ensure that the station operates safely

Noted

106 107 Stratford Stat on Des gn The app icant could provide clar fication from exist ng model ing or undertake a range of sensitivity tests 

pr or to determination or post determ nation  Th s could c arify for example whether platform c earance 

t mes and o her metr cs wou d enable some satisfact on that different capac ties wi l not give rise o 

unacceptab e impacts or harm and the frequency of events  The applicant would need to con irm 

responsib lity or any ident fied appropr ate mitigation to be delivered be ore scheme open ng  Th s could 

build upon the applicant’s just fication that many events wi l be below a maximum capacity.

Fur her ana ys s has been carried out focus ng on Platform 6+8 which a lows for a comparison 

between event capacities  Addit onal sensitivity testing is proposed post planning to shape 

event day operational management measures such as sta fing oca ion  crowd barries  

signage locations etc

107 108 Stratford Stat on Des gn It w ll be necessary to update s gnage and wayfind ng inside Stratford Stat on  Wayf nding management 

strategy w ll need to be supported by in ormat on and wayfinding at key dec sion points with n QEOP and 

surrounding area

Noted

108 110 Stratford Stat on Des gn It w ll a so be necessary to identify improvements to internal c rculation to address the impacts of MSG 

demand given the frequency of events compared to existing Special Events to enhance non permanent 

event over ay measures and access on circulat on from street to ticket ha l to p atforms and the 

cumu ative impact of increased demand across the sta ion  which would need to be agreed at a set 

tr gger point pr or to opening of the proposed development o ensure such intervent ons can be del vered 

and a low for operation in future year scenarios

Sensit vity test ng proposed post p ann ng to re ine operational management measures

109 110 Stratford Stat on Des gn Fur her work and approach to mitigation

• Appropriate further work, mitigation and decision and governance procedures will need to be 
cons dered wi h the Stratford Station Board and sub groups

• As above in event contro s, a range of event category caps below the maximum 21,500 Sphere capacity 
shou d be tested n scenarios to mitigate aga nst the risk of frequent h gh capac ty events and impacts on 

station congestion to ref ect the new business as usual operation and reduce risks ar sing

• It s considered that an appropriate signif cant contribution airly and reasonably related in scale and 
kind to the transport mpact the trips generated rom th s s te and frequency of events wou d be required 

towards conges ion re ief schemes and internal wayfind ng and signage and other measures wh ch wou d 

enable the delivery of nterventions prior to firstoccupation of the site or other suitable triggers to be 

agreed  or opening year and future demand

• Requirement to de iver proposed Platform 12 entrance prior to development opening which cou d 
partia ly provide mit gation to accommodate MSG demand (or a cascade arrangement of other significant 

measures necessary to address the mpact of the proposed deve opment) w th all necessary consents 

entered nto

1  Noted

2  Additional analysis has now been undertaken for P atform 6+8 that prov des a comparison 

across mu tiple event capacit es to aid operational p anning within the station  However  the 

Applicant cannot comm t to frequency caps at event capacities for commercial reasons as this 

would put the venue at a disadvantage in compar son to all other UK arenas

3  MSG wou d be wi ling to work with T L and other transport s akeholders to scope and then 

undertake sensit vity test ng with n Stratford Stat on in the post planning period  Shou d this 

testing identify urther issues requ ring mitigation  these wi l be mitigated through the fol owing 

measures: signage; wayf nding; commun cat ons; barriers; or staff ng  Physical works would 

be excluded from any mitigation as the Transport Assessment demons rates that the 

proposed physical m tigat on mitigates the impacts of MSG Sphere at ts maximum capacity

4  The delivery of the sta ion entrance prior to deve opment opening wi l be secured through 

the planning perm ss on

110 110 Stratford Stat on Des gn • Requirement for Platform 12 ticket ha l detailed des gn work and modelling to Concept stage and to 
subsequent stages, to meet relevant standards and to address issues denti ied with submitted des gn – 
f to LU standards to fo low Deve oper Projects Pathway Compliance Strategy

• Requirement at appropriate stage to be agreed or clar fication and further modelling of sens tivities to 
address a range of issues primarily aris ng at P atform 6 & 8 and on internal circu ation towards t cket 

halls to identify physical and operat onal measures to be implemented prior to deve opment opening to 

address pla form capac ty and plat orm c earance and vert cal circu ation to accommodate MSG demand 

and frequency of events  The scope of in ormat on and modelling to include:

• Impact of di ferent event sizes
• Sp its between s airs
• Perturbation scenarios
• Left behinds
• Changes to boarding / a ighting d spersal rates
• Impact on Eastern subway under different sp its and assumptions.
• Stat on one-way system testing
• Requirement to de iver wayfinding, signage, and event overlay items for congestion re ief and circulation 
enhancements

1  Re evant standards wi l be met when des gning the Platform 12 ticket ha l

2  Further analysis has been undertaken on Pla form 6+8 as requested and he results have 

been shared with TfL and NR  MSG would be will ng to work w th TfL and other transport 

stakeholders to scope and then under ake sens tiv ty testing within Stratford Station in the 

post p anning period  Shou d this test ng identi y further issues requiring mit gation  these will 

be mi igated through the following measures: signage; way ind ng; communications; barriers; 

or staff ng  Physical works would be excluded from any mitigation as the Transport 

Assessment demonstrates that the proposed phys cal mitigation mit gates the impacts of 

MSG Sphere at its maximum capaci y

Of the areas of add tional modell ng set out by TfL  the fo lowing could be delivered as part of 

a post plann ng per od of analysis to inform any m tigat on required n the form of operational 

measures or overlay:

• Impact of di ferent event size for operational p anning purposes
• Sp its between s airs to inform stat on management and wayfinding
• Impac s of station one-way systems, to develop and refine station management

111 111 Stratford Stat on Des gn There is suppressed demand at he eastern end of the NLL and the forthcom ng LO Upgrade P an to 

2041 s ant cipated to recommend ncreasing serv ce frequencies  and extra stabl ng and reversing 

capab lity at Stratford in the form of add tional platform nfrastructure wi l almost certain y be required  For 

MSG  th s would prov de additional network capacity and resil ence to benefit MSG events

Noted

112 113 Stratford Stat on Des gn The proposed ocat on of the new Platform 12 entrance wou d directly conf ict with the scheme to extend 

the operational length of the exist ng Pla form 1

It is understood that the preferred scheme does not conflict with the new stat on entrance

113 114 Stratford Stat on Des gn We wi l encourage that the new Platform 12 entrance proposal does not prec ude the abi ity to progress 

these addit onal platform in rastruc ure concepts further orward in the design deve opment stage and on 

to potential delivery and will be pleased to update on ongoing progress to inform the assessment and 

interface with MSG’s railway proposals.

Applicant to follow GRIP process to ensure scheme is not precluded

114 114 Stratford Stat on Des gn Mitigation

i  Seek urther engagement on these proposals with Network Rail;

i  Feasibi ity work to understand (and provide robust ev dence) as to how the London Overground 

schemes can complement or not preclude Platform 12 entrance proposal;

ii  Subject to further discuss ons with rail ndustry stakeho ders or a contribut on to Network Ra l 

eas bil ty work a ongside the new station entrance proposals des gn to denti y solutions for ntegrat on  

and to provide add tional network bene its for MSG events

To be developed through further consu tation and design progression post planning

115 118 Staffing It is considered that permanent ncrease in station sta f resource is requ red as a resu t of the 

deve opment given the frequency of events  Details of stat on management plans to manage vis tors 

arr ving at proposed development and leaving after events w ll need to be set out to provide requ red 

nputs for staffing model for a l operators

Noted  however revenue generated is forecast to cover additional costs

116 122 Staffing The new station entrance  for LU staffing purposes  s considered remote and would need to be managed 

by a minimum of two members of staff at all times  and this would need to ncrease for particu ar MSG 

event attendances

Noted  however revenue generated is forecast to cover additional costs

117 124 Staffing LU and other operators will need to assess how CCEPs would need to be updated to deal w th the 

increased impact of regular services, which could be intended to complement the 6,000 – 11,999 
moderate  and 12,000  full  external event management categor es set out in the CONOPS or 

cons stency

Noted  however revenue generated is forecast to cover additional costs

118 126 Staffing For LU, based on the appl cant’s CONOPS for return traf ic and flows to station entrances additional staff 
are expected to be needed to at Platform 12 entrance  and Southern Ticket Hall  and n some scenarios 

on Platform 6 & 8  To support the command and control and commun cation with the venue event control 

room  a supervisor would be required on duty within the venue event control room ( n l ne with the 

estab ished arrangemen s for London Stadium football and major events) and where the CONOPS has 

dent fied station sta f would be requ red  Add tional sta f are a so expected to be needed to escort 

mobi ity mpa red passengers (where t would not be acceptable for external staff o under ake this with n 

a stat on)

Noted  however revenue generated is forecast to cover additional costs

119 127 Staffing It would be expected that additional MTR staff (for El zabeth l ne) will be required n their parts of the 

station and other operators such as KAD (for DLR) and Arriva Rail London (for London Overground) 

wou d a so require additional p atform staff  and these are all operations provided to TfL under 

Concession Agreement contracts

Noted  however revenue generated is forecast to cover additional costs

120 129 Staffing The CONOPS identif es that some MSG guests may choose to use Maryland sta ion  or hat Maryland 

station would be used in major contingency  and the need for additional tra ned station staff would be 

required there  in add tion to any staff at S ratford station

Minimal numbers are forecast to use Mary and except for in major cont ngency  e g  Stratford 

Sta ion being closed  Th s is due to he increased walk t mes and the fact that it does not 

provide access to any lines that Stratford does not do already  Guest commun cations and 

management w ll a so d scourage use of Maryland Stat on  Th s level of demand is not 

expected to require increased station sta fing

121 130 Staffing Event coinc dences with London Stadium events may also require further work nto l ne capac ty and 

station staf ing and management to nvestigate for example how Stadium customers w shing to use 

westbound services at Hackney Wick or Pudding Mill Lane stations will not be left behind if London 

Overground and DLR rains are full on eav ng Stratford stat on

MSG would be wil ing to work with TfL in the post plann ng per od to help their understanding 

of this  however due to the m nimal MSG demand at these stations and on these l nes t is not 

proposed to fund any further mitigation  especia ly g ven the m nimal l kel hood of th s clash 

occur ng  

122 130 Staffing Mitigation

i  Understanding of event calendar and balance of afternoon and evening events

i. Staffing for new stat on entrance – if LU were to operate t, an increase in permanent staffing
ii  Additional staffing for MSG event upl fts for LU and other operators  to address mit gation for CCEPs: 

or LU expected to be a further ncrease in permanent staffing  and arrangements or all other operators 

to be c arif ed

Sta fing to be funded by extra revenue generated by MSG guests using TfL services

123 133 Rail Glare and Distraction Fur her work and mit gation

i  Further work to be scoped w th NR and LU as appropr ate

i  Requ rement o fol ow LU standards where different to NR standards with LU signall ng department  

with app icant to part cipate in LU Stat on and Train Tier 1 and 2 groups  and Plat orm Tra n Interface 

(PTI) and Signal Sighting committees

ii  Requirement to secure  fund and del ver LU phys cal nfrastructure and assoc ated updates to as bui t 

record information n line with LU standards

v  LLDC should be sat sfied that the mit gation offered by the applicant can be control ed  secured  

unded and delivered through an appropr ate p ann ng or ra lway industry mechanism

i  The Applicant is committed to scoping and undertaking design work as required to comply 

with NR and LU processes and regulat ons and will work co laboratively with NR and LU to 

this end  when appropriate

i  The Applicant knowledges and accepts the requ rement to fo low LU standards where 

different to NR standards with LU signalling department  wi h app icant to part cipate in LU 

Sta ion and Train Tier 1 and 2 groups  and Pla form Tra n Interface (PTI) and Signal Sight ng 

committees

ii  The Planning Conditions and Section 106 Agreement set out  the on the part of the 

Applicant  the obligations which must be fulfi led

v  Noted

124 137 Road User Safety Report Mitigation

i  The proposed mit gation strategy suggests a p ann ng condit on for a deta led junct on analysis pr or to 

operation to determine whether t is necessary to alter road traff c s gna s or s gnage  and that the 

potent al a terations could nclude repositioning road traf ic signa s or signage at the relevant junct on or 

extended backboards to traffic signals  This would only be appropriate where there s clear benefit to 

road users  and the changes were in accordance w th traff c s gnal des gn gu dance and standards  The 

posit on of traffic signals shou d always be located to faci itate safety  LLDC wi l need to be assured that 

the m tigat on of ered by the applicant for a deta led assessment prior to operat on can be determ ned at 

plann ng stage  and can be control ed  secured  unded and delivered through an appropriate plann ng or 

highways mechan sm

i  Any junct on changes should be based on coll sion ana ys s and should a m to mprove facilit es for 

road users in accord w th the V sion Zero approach  Where pract cab e  the appl cant cou d consider the 

use of trees and green infrastructure to obscure the advert from road users at sens tive locations  tak ng 

account that trees take time to establ sh and lose leaves in winter

ii  T L agrees with the other aspec s of the mit gation strategy to manage content  phased 

commission ng and mon toring of co lision data  If data shows increased col is ons  t is not c ear if the 

appl cant wou d propose to halt the continua ion of the adverts  remove adverts or propose alternative 

mitigation not already dent fied  Monitoring wou d on y be useful if t leads to meaningful action to remedy 

the si uation

v  TfL cannot confirm that the proposed m tigat on stra egy e im nates the dr ver d strac ion risks rom the 

proposed advert  It does reduce the risk  and it would be for the ocal highway authority to assess this 

carefu ly  particularly taking into account the local co lision record

v. TfL would note that failure to look properly  and driver distraction are major contributory factors to 
coll sions  which relates to a range of factors as set out by the Royal Society for Prevention of Accidents 

(RoSPA): https://www rospa com/med a/documents/road safety/driver distraction factsheet pdf and 

Brake (the road sa ety charity): http://www brake org uk/info and resources/facts advice research/road

safety facts/15 facts a resources/facts/1131 distractionfacts 

i  Noted

i  Noted

ii  To be agreed with n the word ng of he planning conditions

v  Noted 

v  Noted

125 141 Healthy Streets It w ll need to be demonstrated how kerbspace and highway capacity on Montfichet Road (and other 

nearby roads such as Angel Lane  Westfield Avenue  Great Eastern Road and car parking areas) wi l 

operate both in event over ay mode given dif erent impac s during event arrivals and departures and or 

general mul i modal in erchange outside of event per ods  and how access in and out of the bus station is 

re ained

To be addressed through further traffic modell ng as part of s278 and area w der traff c 

management plan

126 142 Healthy Streets Fur her in ormat on and plans will need to be developed as part of detai ed design and operation to show 

the ease of manag ng the frequent alterations from non event mode to any event overlay if this requires  

or examp e  the suspension of the off street cycle track or other impacts on transport services  as well 

as storage areas for any event overlay material such as barriers

To be addressed through further traffic modell ng as part of s278 and area w der traff c 

management plan

127 144 Healthy Streets It is concerning that  as set out n the V sitor Travel Plan that cyclists will not be perm tted to cyc e on the 

podium for safety reasons  and it is considered that  regardless of any on site design mat ers  a route 

rom Angel Lane via the podium onto the Town Centre L nk Bridge and onto Wes field estate may be an 

attractive desire ine to cyclists  and it is unc ear how restr cting cycle access could be enforced

Cycling on the podium raises safety issues for pedestrians  It is not expected or ntended to 

be an a tractive route for cyclists due to the stairs/lif s that require nav gation  This is the 

same restriction as in Westfie d and many other pr vate estates across London  and would be 

enforced in the same way

128 147 Healthy Streets T L st ll has concerns that car travel to/from the deve opment may be attractive  given the relat ve ease of 

access by road and the avai abi ity of park ng in the vic nity of the venue

The impact of the forecast vehicle trips and car park ng has been assessed w thin the TA  

based on mode shares observed at the London Stad um  which is in the same pos ton re  

attractiveness to drive given that the location  car parks  h ghways are the same

The Appl cant is a so comm tted to min mising car use through the Travel P an

129 150 Healthy Streets t is not clear how any impact of traffic delay will affect the operation and popularity of the shuttle serv ce To be addressed through further traffic modell ng as part of s278 and area w der traff c 

management plan
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130 151 Healthy Streets T L considers there s a r sk of impact on the operation of the Strat ord town centre bus sta ion and taxi 

rank to be addressed

To be addressed through further traffic modell ng as part of s278 and area w der traff c 

management plan

131 152 Healthy Streets Mitigation

i  A combinat on of interventions to be secured by an appropriate planning or highway mechanism  

besides whatever exis ing h ghway contro s and a traff c s gnal programmes can be cont nued  such as 

area management  a review of signal times  enhanced bus priority phys cal measures  junct on 

protect on  and reducing duration of road closures before during or after London Stadium coincidences to 

protect bus journey imes  will be requ red to support the network

i  If any MSG events are o be held in paral el with London Stadium events  the applicant will need to 

work w th LLDC  Newham Council and TfL to assess and analyse highways issues and develop and 

mplement a strategy which signif cant y reduces delays to buses and their passengers  to address 

access routes to car parks  and offer confidence that these strategies can cope w th the ncremental 

ncreased capacity

ii  Event overlay proposals for moderate and fu l and imp icat ons on crowd management inc uding but 

not limited to barriers  wayf nding  signage and management and operation responsibi ities

v  We consider that the app icant w ll need to commit to a package of enhancements or other inks and 

junct ons n the vicinity  identified as exper enc ng signi icant impacts  such as Stratford H gh Street / 

Warton Road  and Angel Lane to deliver improvements to address network per ormance arising from the 

impact of the development – to be d scussed and agreed with LLDC and Newham Council
v  CPZs and RPZs n the surrounding area rarely inc ude even ng per ods and weekends  except where 

covered by any events at the London Stadium  It will need o be resolved with the relevant Councils how 

to cover events t mes and for he applicant to fund these changes accordingly

vi  Enhancements at and on approaches to Maryland stat on to enable event management in the event of 

MSG guests using Mary and s ation or for major contingency plans

i  Further tra fic mode ling w ll be undertaken post p anning to inform a deta led Tra fic 

Management P an to dent fy event spec fic traffic signal timings  programmes  etc  This wi l be 

scoped with TfL and LB Newham as the highway authority

i  The detai ed Tra fic Management P an will incorporate London Stadium operations so that 

there is a strategy in place should the un ike y scenario arise of bo h venues hold ng events n 

parallel  The Applicant will work with LLDC  LB Newham and TfL to produce th s

ii  A detailed Crowd Management Plan wi l be produced post planning that sets out the 

required crowd management s affing and nfrastructure or each event type and size

v  There is no evidence that suggests mprovements to junc ions would be required as a 

result of the deve opment  however the further model ing associated w th the deve opment of 

the detailed Traffic Management Plan s envisaged to identify signalling timing changes that 

would benefit the highway network

v  Monitoring of parking wi h the CPZs and implementation of extended CPZ is ncluded within 

the s106

vi  M nimal numbers are forecast to use Maryland except for in major contingency  e g  

Strat ord Station being c osed  This s due to the increased wa k times and the act that it 

does not provide access to any l nes that Stratford does not do already  Guest 

communications and management w ll also discourage use of Mary and Stat on  Th s level of 

demand is not expected to require increased station staff ng

132 153 Mont ichet Road local model ing T L is concerned that the phys cal intervention (aside from event management requ rements on he 300 

event days) cou d have signif cant mpacts for bus  coach and taxi customers and the operation and 

performance of the public transport and ocal highway network

To be addressed through further traffic modell ng as part of s278 and area w der traff c 

management plan

133 154 Mont ichet Road local model ing The detail of the design and its effect on highway performance (such as s gnal cycle time and impact on 

urther junctions with n the same SCOOT reg on) espec ally for bus stat on access and bus network 

performance wi l need to be resolved

To be addressed through further traffic modell ng as part of s278 and area w der traff c 

management plan

134 155 Mont ichet Road local model ing Mitigation

i  TfL could accept that any outstanding matters as part of the Section 278 work could be dealt with post 

any p ann ng decis on by cond tions or ob igat ons wh ch wou d need to be worded to br ng forward a 

revised scheme for Montfichet Road informed by microsimulation modell ng  and an assessment of 

Hea thy Streets requirements  including bus journey ime and per ormance  and options for cyc ing and 

pedestr ans  A l part es wou d need to agree in the obl gation draft ng

1) the extent of that model ing work and

2) its t ming  especia ly f Mon fichet Road works need to be implemented ahead of Bridge 1 and 2 

construction works if that s far ahead of any MSG scheme open ng and

3) a scope of works will need to be defined for the extent of the S278 work or implementation and all the 

requirements of kerbside uses  informed by the extent of m cros mu ation mode ling work  for example f 

that identif es works at other locations beyond those shown in the submitted appl cat on drawings for 

Montf chet Road for examp e to enable bus pr ority at other nearby junc ions to not adversely affect bus 

journey times and performance  Further investigat on of the role and requirements of Mont ichet Road by 

all uses needs to be undertaken to inform deve opment of design options  This should address how 

addit onal space for cycl sts and pedestrians can be provided without detriment to bus operations and 

junct on cycle times  and any run offs rom proposed new stat on entrance and event management plans 

– sec ion below on T L position on designs as subm tted and potential amendmen s and requirements.

Microsimulation modell ng will be undertaken post planning to inform the detailed Traff c 

Management P an  Th s will be scoped w th TfL  LLDC and LB Newham pr or to being 

undertaken to agree the extent  timings  consideration of bus journey times  mitigation 

measures  cycl sts and pedestrians etc  Mit gation would be l mited to s gnal ing 

mprovements or sim lar but would exc ude physical works to junctions as there s no evidence 

this s requ red

Given the differ ng pr orities for the highway network between the authorities  a coordinated 

posit on will need to be agreed during this scop ng  

135 155 Mont ichet Road local model ing i  We strongly urge that the extent of the S278 works should be extended to nclude junctions north and 

south of the area identified – Penny Brookes Street and Westf eld Avenue. This w ll cover a w der area 
wh ch is likely to include junctions to al ow for bus prior ty measures as well as tying nto cycle networks  

especial y if this ass sts with ensur ng ease of access to bus stops n the nterchange zone and for buses 

to access Strat ord City bus station  T L is not seeking any S106 contribut on towards add tional bus 

capacity enhancement for additional services but w ll need to priorit se the performance of the bus 

network where enhanced junctions and bus priority measures are requ red

ii. Road Safety Audits and designers’ responses at the relevant stage.
v  We strongly adv se that the S278 and uture model ing exercise or Mon fichet Road should 

nvestigate ded cat ng footway to pedestr ans and that a new strategy is needed for accommodating 

cyc es on the carr ageway  ideally in a calmed  low speed environment  This would have much wider 

benef ts for the area  especial y the pedestrian env ronment  should be explored n a locat on that has so 

many competing demands

i  The proposed works on Montfichet Road extend from the southern arm of the Penny 

Brookes Street junction hrough to the entrance of Westf eld Car Park B  a 550m length of 

highway  The International Way arm at the junction with Mont ichet Road is also inc uded  In 

addit on  a 230m stretch of Angel Lane highway works are proposed  The quant ty of highway 

works proposed as part of this app icat on is significant  Extend ng these works further wou d 

not be proportionate to he scale of the deve opment impacts  However  the schemes have 

been designed to enable tie n w th th rd party junc ion designs should hey come orward

ii  Noted

v  the De ailed Design of Montfichet Road and Angel Lane wi l be carried out in consultat on 

with TfL  LLDC and LB Newham and the model ing wi l he p in orm th s

136 155 Mont ichet Road local model ing v  We would we come radical solut ons (which may emerge through other pub ic realm and 

masterplanning work with Newham Council and LLDC) that res r ct or remove access or through

movement by general tra fic  effec ive y making Mont ichet Road a bus / coach / taxi / cycle / access only 

street  and enabling changes to the street environment that would genuinely be appropriate for a major 

transport nterchange and the threshold of a large entertainment venue  TfL considers that a wider 

approach to the requirements for v sitors by bicycle to the proposed development and sta ion nterchange 

and Me ropol tan centre  including cyc e hire  wi l need to be considered as a whole with LLDC and 

Newham Counc l to denti y and secure exemp ary cycle prov sion and ease of access

vi  The del very mechanism of amending or installing bus stops  coach stops  taxi ranks and assoc ated 

nfras ructure such as shelters and f ags and informat on on Montf chet Road (or adjacent roads such as 

Angel Lane) will need to be agreed with T L and the highway authority  for inclusion n the S106 or the 

S278 agreement  along w th future maintenance respons bi ities in the event that any non standard 

nfras ructure s proposed

vii  Any temporary amendments during the construction phase w ll a so be requ red

v  these factors will be cons dered through the s278 process n consultation with TfL  LLDC 

and LB Newham

vi  Noted

vii  These w ll be picked up w thin the construct on traf ic management plans

137 158 Mont ichet Road local model ing A reduction of h ghway anes is supported in princ ple  but this needs to cons der the detail in l ght of

• actual dimensions and the constrained capacity between the bui ding line on the western side of the 
road to the railway wall and energy centre on the eastern s de of the road

• the requirement for junctions to car parks and the bus stat on
• the proposed P atform 12 sta ion entrance.
• as above, the impact on traffic and bus services

To be addressed through further traffic modell ng as part of s278 and area w der traff c 

management plan

138 160 Mont ichet Road local model ing For cyc es  such are the im tations on the usabil ty of wha ever off carriageway nfrastructure s provided 

that some cycles will cont nue to use the carriageway  therefore the general advice on recommended 

ane widths st ll appl es

Noted

139 161 Mont ichet Road local model ing The cycle track on the eastern footway compromises the pedestrian environment unacceptably n a 

number of locations  as demonstrated on the Landscape Mont ichet Road drawings 1 4  Section I I  

adjacent to a bus stop  s 2 3m  We consider these to be inadequate for a footway that g ves access to a 

station  bus stop and coach stops  For a venue that w ll generate arge peaks in pedestrian flow  they are 

sign ficantly far be ow what is needed

This footway is modelled us ng Legion within the TA  however refinements to the highway 

proposals wi l be addressed through s278 in consultat on with LLDC  TfL and LB Newham

140 163 Mont ichet Road local model ing The location and funct on of the shared use areas does not make them credible as part of a cyc e or a 

pedestr an network – they are ocat ons where pedestrians are likely to be waiting, and where pedestrian 
desire lines cross

The Montfichet Road design balances the various needs of the highway authority  transport 

authorit es and proposed deve opment  however comments will be considered and addressed 

through the s278 in consultation with stakeholders

141 164 Mont ichet Road local model ing As a proposal that is likely to del ver a crowded  poor qua ity pedestr an environment  to suppress cycle 

use  and to make cycl ng signi icantly more risky  t undermines mayoral objectives around promoting 

cyc ing  modal shi t and V sion Zero

The Montfichet Road design balances the various needs of the highway authority  transport 

authorit es and proposed deve opment  however comments will be considered and addressed 

through the s278 in consultation with stakeholders

142 165 Mont ichet Road local model ing T L does not support the princip e of mov ng the southbound coach stop to the north of Hitchcock Lane 

wh ch wou d put t some distance from the Northern T cket Ha l – and the new Platform 12 s ation 
entrance as designed wou d not provide the same degree of access and c rculation to plat orms  The 

detai ed design shou d there ore take this into account to avoid displac ng daily activity on Montfichet 

Road and the effect of additional wa k distances for coach passengers

The movement of the southbound coach s op does make a material dif erence to the ikely 

journey times for those travel ing by coach and there ore would not be expected to affect 

demand

143 166 Mont ichet Road local model ing It would be better f the cross ng is on the des re line between the bus stop and Northern Ticket Hall / 

Westfie d entrance

The location of the crossing cons ders mult ple factors such as the des re lines  vis bil ty  

ootway wid h  road markings etc  However  the final location can be determined through the 

s278

144 167 Mont ichet Road local model ing The rev sed taxi rank wou d need provide sufficient capacity of a rank for taxis ( black cabs ) and the 
nature of the wait ng / queuing area around Town Centre Link Br dge structure for deployment of taxi 

ramps and c rculation  It w ll need to be clar fied if a re ocated rank onto carriageway could st ll operate 

under London Stadium event conditions with a Montf chet Road closure

Noted

To be addressed through traff c management plans post p ann ng

145 168 Mont ichet Road local model ing Green space appears in sma l  fragmented blocks hat are unlikely o survive well as high qua ity 

addit ons to the streetscape – or examp e, the small block accommodating a litter bin immed ately 
outside the proposed stat on entrance

This wi l be addressed through the s278

146 169 Mont ichet Road local model ing Mitigation

i  Part of S278 works and modell ng exerc se

i  Reso ve the trans tion(s) between a cycle way on edge of h ghway towards the back of pavement / 

ra lway wa l with the bus and coach stop wait ng areas

ii  Resolve the location and unct on of shared space areas

v  The ma n carriageway has to be designed for cycle use  fur her speed reduction measures and 

nterventions to reduce the dominance of veh cular movement on the carriageway

v  Enab e buses to pull onto and away from stops and access he bus stat on  the proposed removal of 

the exist ng right turn lane in o the bus station and for t to be shared into a general carriageway ane and 

signal timing may a fect the ab lity for buses to enter and to leave the bus station eff ciently

i  Noted

i  To be reso ved through s278

ii  To be resolved through s278

v  To be resolved through s278

v  To be investigated with modelling exercise post planning

147 169 Mont ichet Road local model ing vi  Unless sign ficant alternative designs for bus stat on access can be proposed away from the existing 

bus s ation access  the existing bus stat on access w th a central passenger sland w ll need to be 

re ained to al ow for ease of operation of the bus network and traff c s gnals

vii  Pedestr an c rculation areas in line w th Pedestrian Comfort Guidance

viii  Pedestrian cross ng on a su table des re line w th suitab e pavement waiting space  not conf ict ng 

with cycle tracks or cyc e desire l nes

x  Bus stops in ine with TfL accessib e bus stop design gu dance  and t should not be assumed that 

the Town Centre Link Bridge for the proposed bus stop location would provide adequate shelter; bus 

shelters will need to be provided

x  Coach stops have to be at a location where there is more width ava lab e given the demand for 

passengers to wait  with shelter  and for coaches to safely set down and pick up and a so to deploy 

passenger l fts  There may be options to investigate southbound coach stops further south of (relocated) 

bus s ops to make use of kerbspace there f that s c oser to the pedestrian crossing to overcome ease of 

access and walk ng distance to the station Northern T cket Hall entrance  but which may not be 

acceptable w th the operating scenarios where Montfichet Road s c osed for London Stad um events

xi  Taxi rank capac ty and the space for dep oyment of axi ramps and circu ation

xii  Taxi rank to make provision for taxi rapid charging points

xi i. London Stadium Event Day road closure overlay – for access and circulat on espec ally for taxis and 
coaches where emporary facilit es are required (and where coaches are ab e to use the bus standing to 

turn only during Montfichet Road c osures when there is reduced traff c and a highly managed 

environment

vi  To be invest gated w th modell ng exerc se post planning

vii  Noted

viii  To be resolved through s278

x  To be resolved through s278

x  To be reso ved through s278

xi  To be resolved through s278

xii  To be resolved through s278

xi i  To be addressed through raffic management plans post planning

148 171 Mont ichet Road local model ing The removal of cycle aci ities south of Angel Lane bridge is not acceptable There is an exis ing p nch point on Angel Lane  resul ing from the parapet wa l to the west and 

private land to the east  which prevents from maintaining a consistent advisory cycle lane 

throughout this section of the h ghway

The proposed design acknowledges that proposing an in ermittent advisory cycle ane is 

deemed to be an inadequate so ution  both rom a road geometry and safety perspective and 

the proposal s to terminate the advisory cyc e lane to instead prov de a cons stent 

carriageway width  where possib e  as we l as ntegrating a raised table through the location 

at which the exist ng redundant junc ion s located  to prov de a evel of vertical de lect on and 

help reduce veh cle speeds  This will ensure cyc ists gain a primary posit on on the road and 

prevent veh cles from attempting to over ake cyc ists  There s a further controlled pedestrian 

cross ng  coupled with a raised table  immedia ely south of W ndm ll ane that will also help n 

reduc ng vehicular speeds in the location where the cycle lane s terminated

149 172 Mont ichet Road local model ing Footway width at the accessible drop off appears nadequate to allow safe egress rom public veh cles 

without imped ng pedestrian movement on the footway  No crossing fac lity has been provided to access 

the ramp on the western s de of Angel Lane

To be addressed through s278
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150 173 Mont ichet Road local model ing The crossing distance across the mouth of the junct on to the service yard s unacceptably w de  and no 

tacti e paving s proposed at this location  Pedestr ans ought to be prioritised here  given that t is 

designed to be a major entrance to the public realm around the venue  The applicant should clar fy if 

there will be instances where veh cles are seeking to enter this junction at the same t me as another 

vehicle s exiting and how these can be he d and managed to redesign this access

The crossing distance is defined by the swept path analys s of a vehicle enter ng the serv ce 

yard  

This who e section of Angel Lane is on a raised table and therefore pedestrians are 

priorit sed  Road mark ngs wi l g ve pedestr ans pr ority over exit ng vehicles

This provides access to the event service yard which will only be used by veh cles assoc ated 

with the setup and breakdown on an event  Th s means that all arrivals and departures wi l be 

planned and scheduled to reduce the likelihood of veh cles enter ng and ex ting at the same 

t me  Bu lding sta f will  however  be on site to manage service yard movements at all times  

151 174 Mont ichet Road local model ing Cycle parking has been provided at a ocat on where no consideration has been g ven to the cycle 

nfras ructure needed to access it  Removal of the cyc e lanes to provide cycle parking is a poor trade

off

The cycle ane has not been removed to provide cycle parking  The cycle park ng is located 

here to make use of ava lab e space and would be accessible via Angel Lane

152 175 Mont ichet Road local model ing At the northern end of the scheme  the appl cant shou d clarify what would be proposed for he section 

marked redundant existing road no onger used’, if there are a ternative uses or development proposa s.
There are no proposals for th s section of road

153 176 Mont ichet Road local model ing Mitigation

i  Section 278 and model ing exercise

i  Work with Newham Counc l to deve op proposa s for Angel Lane bridge

ii  Retention of cycle provision

v  Road Sa ety Aud t

i  Noted

i  LB Newham w ll be involved in the s278 for Angel Lane

ii  See above for the explanation of the Angel Lane designs

v  Noted

154 177 Existing Traffic signals and controls Section 9 7 on network c earance times does not necessar ly re lect how the traf ic ight system currently 

works and the neutral survey date used may not be representative on timings for a mass egress  It is not 

correct to infer a 117 minute egress time when the timings wi l automatically flex to try and meet the 

demand

To be addressed through further traffic modell ng as part of s278 and area w der traff c 

management plan

155 177 Existing Traffic signals and controls Mitigation

i  9 7 11 sets out need for further detailed modelling  which would be supported to test that aspect of he 

network res lience  and take into account any further or emerging schemes  and where mpacts onto 

other parts of the highway network on Westf eld Avenue n London Stad um road closures are assessed

i  Road network operation or physical des gn changes that effect the operation of the SCOOT or traf ic 

signal system must be understood and changes required by TfL included in any proposed design  These 

changes will require agreement with TfL and a process needs to be n place to achieve th s agreement

i  To be addressed through urther traf ic model ing as part of s278 and area wider tra fic 

management plan

i  To be addressed through further tra fic mode ling as part of s278 and area wider traffic 

management plan

156 178 Bus Network The primary concern for buses is that there must not be any significant impact on the local highway 

network which would affect bus performance

To be identi ied through further traff c model ing as part of s278 and area wider tra fic 

management plan

157 181 Bus Network Mitigation

i  The applicant wi l need to work with LLDC  Newham Council and T L to assess and analyse h ghways 

ssues on MSG only days and any coincidence event days and deve op a strategy which sign ficantly 

reduces delays to road users ncluding buses and their passengers and offer conf dence that these 

strateg es can cope with the increased capacity

i  Commitment to ensure Montfichet Road and other highways served by bus routes would remain open 

before and after MSG on y events

ii  Scope of S278 and local modell ng to nc ude wider area for bus pr ority measures and address 

access to Strat ord City bus station

v  TfL considers that there will be the need for a ded cated S ratford City bus station controller (aside 

rom other Mont ichet Road event day stewards/marshalls) for the specific purpose of managing ssues 

during any construction phase; pre opening operat onal planning; on operat on manag ng the interfaces 

with crowds; operation of buses entering and leaving the bus stand and at bus stops; and other bus 

operational ssues which may arise from passengers leaving the proposed deve opment si e and queuing 

to enter Stratford stat on  They would also have responsibil ty for iaison with T L Network Management 

Control Centre and the venue control centre  It should be noted that Stratford Town centre bus stat on 

has a bus s ation contro ler on site 24 hours a day so no add tional request is sought there  providing a 

Strat ord City control er would be consistent with this and for the benefit of he applicant / to deal with 

mpacts created  T L will provide details of the request or which an annual salary for 1 FTE to commence 

during cons ruction phase for up to 10 years

i  The proposed modell ng to nform he Detai ed Traf ic Management Plan will be scoped wi h 

LLDC  LB Newham and TfL to pick up on these considerations

i  Th s will be determined by the Detai ed Traff c Management Plan but t w ll seek to keep all 

highways open to the greatest extent possib e

ii  The scope of mode ling is yet to be agreed by wi l include buses as a consideration

v  Impacts on buses rom additional demand and tra fic management are expected to be low  

and as journeys by MSG guests are l ke y to generate addit onal revenue  MSG do not believe 

t is necessary o provide funding for a bus station contro ler for Strat ord C ty Bus Station  

During construct on  there will be a fu l construction traffic management scheme wh ch will 

nclude facil tating bus use (both bus and passenger access)  

158 181 Bus Network v  TfL s not seeking any S106 contr bution towards bus capac ty enhancement n operation  but the 

mpact of the construct on phase and re construct on of the Montfichet Road area and the unknown 

mpacts of the scheme when operational (if there is a high adverse mpact on the local h ghway network 

and access to Stratford Ci y bus stat on) may requ re compensation to bus operators where rou es have 

to be temporari y or permanently curtai ed or o herwise amended to maintain the operat on of he bus 

network  TfL w ll be able to provide further details

vi  Operat on and mon toring ident fies for example passengers (e ther v sitors to the proposed 

deve opment or background users) left beh nd and measures to address th s

v  Noted and furter detai s awaited

vi  Noted

159 182 Scheduled Coach impacts The frequency of events of the proposed development and other impacts on the ocal highway network is 

ike y to have a significant mpact on coach serv ces wh ch may a fect the performance of coach serv ces 

n weekday PM peaks and especial y late evenings

To be identi ied through further traff c model ing as part of s278 and area wider tra fic 

management plan

160 183 Scheduled Coach impacts Mitigation

i  The ssues of coach stop oca ion and design and access w ll need to be addressed in the Mont ichet 

Road S278 and des gn work

i  To be ident fied through further tra fic mode ling as part of s278 and area wider traffic 

management plan

161 185 Taxi and Pr vate H re All spaces allocated or taxis should be label ed as 'Taxi Rank' and requirements for temporary peak 
periods ranks’ would need to be d scussed.

To be addressed through s278

162 187 Taxi and Pr vate H re Further discussion w th TfL s Taxi and Private Hire Team will be essential prior to works being completed 
and traf ic orders be ng made

Noted

163 189 Taxi and Pr vate H re A designated space w ll need to be identified on the highway or o f highway for taxis and PHV use and 

wh ch will need to be marshalled according y

To be addressed through s278

164 189 Taxi and Pr vate H re Mitigation

i  The details of taxi rank and private h re locations w ll need to be addressed in the Mont ichet Road 

S278 and des gn work  including ocat ons during London Stadium event days which currently close 

Montf chet Road

i  Rank marshalls for app icant to provide

ii  Requirement to engage with PHV operators and Newham Council as h ghway authori y to establ sh a 

geo fencing zone and suitab e locations for wa ting  on or off street

i  To be addressed through s278

i  Noted

ii  To be addressed through the traffic management plan

165 191 Vis tor coach and minibus use The app icant needs to provide deta ls and resolve how this level of prov sion would be accommodated 

without d srupt on to o her road users  Coach parking shou d be directed to other locations such as the 

aci ity at the Multi Storey Car Park ad acent to Here East

To be addressed through the raffic management plan

166 191 Vis tor coach and minibus use Mitigation

i  Traff c Order for use of yellow l nes on International Way

i  A Coach Management Plan condit on

i  To be addressed through s278

i  Noted

167 195 Cycle Parking and Cycle Hire T L are very concerned that he provis on is not in line w th the London Plan (or MTS) and t does not 

acknow edge he in rastructure improvements in p ace  such as Cyc eway 2  and further proposed 

enhancements to cyc ing connections to the QEOP and catchment area for cycling trips

The cycle parking provision has been driven by the forecast demand plus add tional spaces to 

ensure his s suffic ent  This is more than other comparab e venues  In addition  more than 

800 on street and covered cyc e park ng spaces are avai able within a ten m nute walk of the 

site  with 96 spaces ava lab e with n 2 m nutes

As part of the measures set out in the Vis tor Travel Plan submitted alongside this appl cat on  

t is proposed to monitor evels of cycle parking or MSG Sphere events  Should demand 

exceed 90% of the proposed cycle parking provis on  further cycle parking spaces will be 

provided  with the location of these to be def ned through consultation with LLDC and LB 

Newham

168 199 Cycle Parking and Cycle Hire The role of cycle hire in the overall approach to cyc e access should require enhanced coverage or 

management of the ex sting prov sion be required n the vic nity of the site  and a contribution to 

nvestigate and deliver suitab e sites to expand Cycle H re docking stations within the vicinity of the site 

this wou d need to be secured v a an appropriate legal mechanism

Santander cyc e hire is not forecast to receive a material increase n demand  especial y with 

the comparab e benefits and ncreased ro e of dock ess cyc es compared to the Santander 

Cycles  It is therefore not proposed to increase Santander Cycle facil ties or provision prior to 

the operation of the venue  However  these facil ties wi l be mon tored as part of the event 

monitoring schedule and will be expanded should the surveys suggest demand associa ed 

with MSG Sphere events s c ose to ex sting available provis on

169 199 Cycle Parking and Cycle Hire Mitigation

i  Ident fy additional ocat ons or secure v sitor parking ded cated to MSG events (such as on s te podium 

or other suitab e s tes in the vicinity of the site in line w th other site secur ty and management strategies) 

wh ch the operator cou d manage  to enhance and encourage use of cycling  to increase the provis on 

and propens ty to travel

i  Detai s of cyc e parking for staff and visi ors  including provision or non standard bicycles and storage 

aci ities

ii  The Vis tor Travel Plan to monitor cycle park ng  and if demand exceeds 90% of the proposed 

provision urther spaces w ll be provided  The scope of this mon toring area will need to be dent fied  and 

areas for addi ional park ng in the l kel hood of th s occurring  given the ocat on of the other spaces and 

their use by other land uses

v  Contribution to Cycle H re to deliver add tional or expand ex sting docking stations in the vicinity of the 

site

i  This w ll be deta led within the Cycle Parking Management Plan

i  Th s will be detailed w thin the Cycle Parking Management Plan

ii  Noted  The scop ng of he monitoring area wi l be discussed with TfL through the 

deve opment of the Vis tor Travel Plan

v  Contribution to cycle hire is not proposed as it is not forecast to receive material increase 

n demand  However  these facilit es wi l be monitored as part of the event monitoring 

schedule and will be expanded should he surveys suggest demand associated with MSG 

Sphere events s c ose o existing available provision

170 200 Car Parking  Operational sta f Mitigation

i  All operational parking must prov de in rastructure for e ectr c or other U tra Low Emission vehicles and 

disabled persons park ng bays and enlarged bays shou d be designed in accordance w th the des gn 

guidance provided in BS8300: Vol 1

i  Car Park Management P an

i  Noted

i  Noted

171 205 HS1 Car Park app icat on the provis on of standard spaces s not n l ne with London P an policy T6 4A  or Policy T 8 of the LLDC 

Local Plan and this provision is not supported

The London Plan Pol cy 6 4A stages that on site prov sion should be limited to operat onal  

This s consistent with the development proposals

The parking at HS1 Car Park is pr mari y for the purposes of providing disabled park ng 

spaces as part of the mobili y strategy  The proposals are a reprovision of exist ng spaces 

and result in a net reduction in overa l spaces  It also reduces the amount of parking available 

to the public for day to day use and restricts the ability for London Stadium visitors to use 

these on a matchday  which is acknow edged by LLDC to be an issue  These factors are not 

accounted for w thin either policy mentioned

172 206 HS1 Car Park app icat on The app icant should assess if they wish to enhance the provision of des gnated blue badge spaces to 

accommodate potential add tional demand or remove the provision of standard parking

No changes are proposed

173 206 HS1 Car Park app icat on Mitigation

i  Reduce prov sion of standard parking to comply w th po icy

i  Clarify risk of impact of background traff c on operat on of mobi ity shutt e before and after events

ii  Engagement with the BEAP and other relevant stakeholders to develop the mobil ty assistance serv ce 

n advance of the open ng of MSG Sphere

v  In rastructure for e ectr c or other U tra Low Emission vehicles

v  Car Park Management Plan

i  see responses above

i  The primary mobility shuttle connections are between HS1 Car Park and Br dge 1 or Angel 

Lane  Both of these routes are short in distance and are on stretches of highway that are not 

expected to be congested  The return leg of the Angel Lane shuttle may take onger as it 

circu ates the gyratory  however no passengers w ll be onboard at th s point  Shutt es wi l  

however  be accounted for in the proposed further tra fic mode ling

ii  Noted

v  In rastructure for EV vehicles wi l be nvestigated and is ike y subject to factors such as 

existing infrastructure and the abi ity to prov de th s in he current bui ding

v  Noted

174 207 Mob lity Shuttle Stra egy Any on street shuttle service would need to take into account the background highway cond tions and 

any London Stadium related road closures if there is a c ash of events to access the proposed drop off / 

pick up locations  while the future arrangements for the stat on and highway arrangements for Gibb ns 

Road may be operating n a d fferent way to preclude a shuttle serv ce

To be addressed through the raffic management plan

175 207 Mob lity Shuttle Stra egy Mitigation

i. Further deve opment of mobi ity assistance prior to event operat on – or Stratford station informed by 
uture operating models and entrance avai abi ity

i  Add tional Stratford station staff for escorting pre booked passengers to ticket ha ls or shutt e service 

points

ii  Highway controls for management and enforcement of drop off / p ck up bays

i  Noted

i  To be addressed through further discuss on and the development of the mob lity strategy

I i  Noted

176 208 Travel Plans the relevant mode share  provision of on s te and off s te car parking  and increases in cycle parking  and 

event frequencies w ll need to be rev ewed and reso ved and updates w ll need to low through all 

documents

Noted

177 209 Travel Plans the Staff Travel P an includes targets which are cons dered to be unamb tious  such as to increase 

cyc ing mode share from 8 to 8 5%  espec ally given the 90% of staff in LLDC area and ne ghbour ng 

boroughs

Full travel p an to be submitted and agreed with LLDC as part of s106

178 209 Travel Plans Mitigation

i  A variety of data on the transport impact of the events together with feedback on the arrangements will 

need to be co lected for ongoing operation mitigation for Travel Plan mon toring and future event p anning 

and m tigat on  It s suggested that the scope of these surveys s agreed and secured by condition

i  The full Travel Plans should be secured  en orced  mon tored and rev ewed as part of the S106 

agreement  with commitments to fund and del ver enhancements to mprove targe s

i  Noted

i  Noted
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179 211 Construction The new junction constructed opposite Windm ll Lane and the new vehicle br dge cross ng the HS1 box 

wi l requ re relocation of an ex sting northbound bus stop and location of adjoining southbound bus stop 

wi l also need to be considered and agreed with TfL and Newham Council

Noted

180 211 Construction It needs to be clari ied f the junct on would require traffic signals or other sign ficant means of control 

during the constrution period to enable access and egress the site wi hout a fect ng the performance of 

Angel Lane

The requ rement for traff c s gnal or other sign ficant means of control will be identif ed with n 

the detailed Construct on Logis tics or Construction Traffic Management Plan

181 215 Construction Mitigation

i  Relocation of Angel Lane northbound bus stop

i  Clarifying access for Platform 12 entrance works and worksite for any access via Montf chet Road  and 

mpact on existing bus and coach stops

ii  Clar fying conditions with re erence to overnight work

v  Fu l CLP includ ng constructor Travel Plan and ongoing lia son w th LLDC Construct on Transport 

Management Group (CTMG) and other relevant groups

i  Noted

i  To be deta led post p anning in inal Construct on Logist cs / Management Plan

ii  Noted

v  Noted

182 216 Construction  Rail a range of further work and agreements and in rastructure protection cond tions will be requ red with 

Network Ra l and London Underground

Noted

183 219 Construction  Rail Fur her Work and Mitigation

i  As part of further station modell ng exerc se to test construction phas ng and impacts within the stat on 

– including external impacts that change entrance ava lab lity. Crit cal phases to be identified and 
mode led

i  Asset protection agreements and suitab e planning cond tions will be requ red for the construct on and 

operational phases

ii  Clar fying access for stat on improvement works and works te for any access via Montf chet Road

v  Clari ying conditions and railway approvals w th reference to overn ght work and rai way possessions

i  Noted

i  Noted

ii  To be c arif ed in construction management plans

v  Noted

184 220 Potent al s106 agreement or planning conditions • Mode Share Target and Travel Plan
• Monitoring and Target regime
• Venue Operations Manual and associated Event Management P ans
• Stat on Operat ons P ans
• Transport Marketing and Communica ions Plan
• Mobi ity Shu tle operation Plan
• Venue Car Park Management P an
• HS1 Car Park Management P an
• Coach Parking and Management Plan
• Car coach and minibus drop off and pick up P an
• Taxi and Private Hire drop off and waiting and geo-fencing Plan
• Parking and Enforcement Plans
• Cycling and Parking P an
• Wayfinding and Area Signage Plan
• Service and Delivery Route and Access Plan
• Construction Logistics Plans

Noted

185 1 CONOPS detailed comments 1 5 Scope C arify f scenarios set out later cover all event times and types The Conops selects event times and types to demonstrate how the venue w ll funct on  it s 

not exhaustive  covering every possible scenario  The Venue Ops Manual will develop 

operational plans further

186 2 CONOPS detailed comments 1 5/1 7 scope and partners and stakeho ders: A table of who needs to be involved engaged on part cular 

topics – including varying dif erent sections of eg LLDC, Newham, TfL / LU, TOCs, wou d help to 
estab ish areas of interest (or no ) for ongoing work

The mu tip e areas of on going work w ll be developed post planning w th the engagement of 

organisations  subsets of those organisations included

187 3 CONOPS detailed comments 1 6 1 What does less than 9 months notice mean in reality for impac s to the stat on and its operation? Cont ngency p ann ng will take place for all foreseeab e scenarios as part of the post planning 

plann ng phase  this wi l include the impac s of any variation from the protocols set out

188 4 CONOPS detailed comments 1 6 2 What does avoid Strat ord dur ng peak ac iv ty per ods  mean in real ty for people com ng to he 

venue given that is where t is and personal preference for how / when to arrive in the area?

Guests will be advised that Stra ford Station is very busy during certa n periods and it is 

adv sab e to p an the r journey accordingly

189 5 CONOPS detailed comments 1 6 5 Note that  the plann ng premise is that there shou d be no significant addit onal resource 

mpl cat ons or the th rd part es  MSG  will reasonably recompense the third part es subject to fu l cost 

transparency and pr or agreement of the quantum of costs

This re ers to Westfie d and London S adium  should they incur any signif cant addit onal 

costs as a direct result of our crowd management operation  these organisations do not 

charge MSG guests or tickets  

190 6 CONOPS detailed comments 1.8 LOSPG and LBN SAG – effectively statutory functions to be attended - other text in letter - STRIM a 
ess formal inter ace meeting

Noted

191 7 CONOPS detailed comments 2 2 Any spec fic difference for publ c rea m between moderate and fu l? Eg for Montf chet Road  would t 

require cyc e lane closure  barriers e c in an MSG only event scenario

Any overlay requirements n the publ c rea m  in all event scenarios  w ll be deta led n the 

VOM

192 9 CONOPS detailed comments .3 A range of factors on station operation and space outside the station – further discussion required – 
nformation rom applicant and TfL / MTR  T L / MTR will have to assess how the station operates to 

manage add tional flows  and other exist ng background users  capac ty of icket hal s and pinchpo nts 

(existing and po ential future interventions)  other discussion / cons derat on of existing weekday PM 

peak one way system

The details of stat on operations will be developed  with the station operators in the post

plann ng p ann ng phase  following extens ve engagement with the respect ve organisations 

and captured n the respective operat ng documents  for MSG th s is the VOM

193 10 CONOPS detailed comments .3 Mobility Impaired Passengers – Need to assess from staff management how arriving / departing 
passengers can be escorted and make use of step free aci ities across the stat on  and impact on staff 

requirements  No external event staff will be a lowed nto the station

Operat onal deta l to be covered in post plann ng p ann ng and for MSG  captured in the VOM

194 11 CONOPS detailed comments 4 3 Those arriving on Jubilee may sti l use western subway and Northern TH esp for access to Wes field 

before an event

Noted

195 12 CONOPS detailed comments 4 3 Not all passengers will want to return the same way (eg weekn ght work to Stratford to home) and out

of stat on and stat on operation wi l have to dicta e how customers are presented to station entrances

Noted

196 13 CONOPS detailed comments 4 7  Controlled pedestrian crossing  If sti l requ red in some scenarios  may not be required  But this 

needs clar fication how lows will be properly managed to prevent informal cross ng po nts rom Bridge 2 

to Northern TH (if MSG spectators choose not to access Platform 12 entrance  or finding other routes to 

car parks and Westfie d)

To be addressed through event management plan n line w th detailed highway designs

197 14 CONOPS detailed comments 4 7 Last para  control ed pedestrian crossing managed by MSG employed stewards n co ordinat on 

with TfL s ation staff   will give rise to other necessary requests for addit onal station sta f to support 

safety case and management plans

It is not env saged that TfL manage crowds ou side their boundary and once nside the 

boundary  these are fare paying passengers

198 15 CONOPS detailed comments .11 Concern over 5-6 coach assumption – clarify how 5-6 coaches cou d be accommodated at the 
same time on clear kerbspace  coaches can t eas ly be ca led on similar to taxis

To be addressed in s278 and coach management plan

199 16 CONOPS detailed comments 4 14 1 Taxis in London Stadium road closure mode on Montfichet Road  arrangement of head of rank 

and taxi area for calling on may clash w th the low of MSG spectators from Bridge 2  will need to clarify 

how accommodated and laid out?

To be addressed in axi management plan in ine with detai ed h ghway designs

200 17 CONOPS detailed comments 4 14 1 Taxi marshalls  TfL can provide details  but these shou d be provided directly by the event 

organiser

Noted

201 19 CONOPS detailed comments 5  Crowd Model ing  th s rate can then be ncreased   it may not be guaranteed that entry rate into 

station cou d be ncreased  especial y given ower frequency ate even ng services

Noted

202 20 CONOPS detailed comments 5 4  300 peop e per minute  to be confirmed in other work against finish imes though sounds reasonable 

n practice and spread across mult ple entrances where avai able  nature of background flows and 

requency of serv ce may prevent his n every scenario

Noted

203 21 CONOPS detailed comments 5 5 App development and communication for sta ion f ows would need urther work  f technology doesn t 

exist at the moment it may not be able to be secured as m tigat on  and require further work w th TfL and 

operators  and f exibi ity to be backed up by event staff and management

Noted

204 22 CONOPS detailed comments 5 6 Will need to clar fy if / how / when station gates can be amended rom en rance to ex t (cross ref to 

ater)

To be addressed dur ng post planning operat onal planning work

205 23 CONOPS detailed comments 5 7 the new entrance reduces  crowd management intervent ons required w thin the stat on   as 

elsewhere  do not support this statement  There is sti l the r sk of crossflows or short term per ods of 

congestion and need e sewhere or add tional stat on s aff to manage access and internal flows  esp at 

top and bottom of staircases

MSG would be wil ing to work with TfL and o her transport stakeho ders to scope and then 

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

206 24 CONOPS detailed comments 6  Co ordinat on and contingency plann ng  Add tional high level tems o include of: event day 

suspension of ines; closure or suspension of other key interchange stat ons; closure of key local 

highway links on mobi ity shutt es  surface transport

Agreed

207 26 CONOPS detailed comments 7 1 Challenge can clear the area faster   may not be able to be rel ed upon Noted

208 27 CONOPS detailed comments 7. Out ine Crowd Management Plans  – no specific deta led discuss on with TfL. The CONOPs and outline crowd management p ans have been shared wi h TfL over the last 

two years  they were deve oped based on the ex sting crowd management operation  and w ll 

urther evolve just as the crowd management plans for the area have evolved s nce the 

London S adium opened  for example

209 28 CONOPS detailed comments 7 4 1 Assess ng Risks  Clarify local businesses  and nature of their formal responses and any concerns The list of ocal bus nesses s included in the CONOPS  MSG has committed to ma ntain this 

dialogue and extend the invitat on to engage w th any local business which is mpacted by  or 

mpacts on MSG Sphere  This will be captured in the operational p anning phase  post

plann ng  and reflected n the VOM for MSG

210 29 CONOPS detailed comments 7 4 5 Clari y if potent al for Emergo / desktop exercises at relevant stage  and the parallel role or NR 

Sa ety usti icat on Report?

Work streams post planning approval wi l be extensive and the interrelationsh p with the 

related an  or parallel act vit es of other organisations will be mapped out

211 30 CONOPS detailed comments 7 4 4 & 7 4 8 Structure only shows MSG internal structure  Further informat on on interfaces with other 

venue / con rols at Stratford s ation  NMCC  Westfield  London Stadium

Operat onal deta l to follow in the iterative creat on and updating of the VOM

212 31 CONOPS detailed comments 7 4 8 Single point of control requ red Control  structure and commun cat on will be developed in the i erative creation and updating 

of the VOM

213 32 CONOPS detailed comments 7 5 Coinc dences  Welcome hat The applicant s commit ed to providing the resources  n terms of 

qual ty and peop e  and ow to secure this for inside stations / bus stations and any control rooms or 

nterfaces with transport operators  LU and MTR need to be part of this Command and Control decis on 

mak ng process  and for assess ng station event staff uplift

Noted

214 33 CONOPS detailed comments 7 6 Guest Arrivals  Assume based on network and station modell ng to nform routes to venue and 

management strategy  and how ind vidual events w ll have origin / dest nation data or spectators for 

sign ficant var ation

Noted

215 34 CONOPS detailed comments 7.7 Departures - Routes fully managed . Further information required around this especia ly around 
Command and Control and who physica ly manages the queues and where any handovers occur  and for 

pr macy of ownership  especia ly or generating station staff upl ft  How publ c rea m barr er lines are 

arranged – esp or dif erences of sma l to moderate to full event categories.

Operat onal deta l to follow in the iterative creat on and updating of the VOM

216 35 CONOPS detailed comments 7 7 Maryland Station  which may be used more extens ve y on y in major cont ngency p ans ra her than 

normal operat ons  Wou d need more detail on th s  if this wou d be an event day con ingency or 

some hing planned ahead (for example a known l ne or station closure at Stra ford) and how sta fed and 

resourced

Operat onal deta l to follow in the iterative creat on and updating of the VOM

217 36 CONOPS detailed comments 7 7 1 Egress Times  Other assessment in application review and responses  welcome the reference to 

a rate the station can accommodate

Noted

218 37 CONOPS detailed comments 7 7 1 Egress Times  Assess how NTH can operate  risk of MSG spectators also queuing to access t 

alongside other background demand  Westfie d da ly and however London Stad um coinc dences are 

managed

This can be covered in scenario testing during the post planning planning phase

219 38 CONOPS detailed comments 7 8  Clarify  deta ls of these should include all transport operators from Stratford MSG has committed to joining the appropriate forum w th transport operators

220 39 CONOPS detailed comments CCTV shar ng  acceptable in principle  though to assess how this is delivered and secured in eg station 

control rooms or stat on CCTV nto venue control rooms

CCTV usage will be covered n post planning planning as part of the command  control and 

comms coordination workstream

221 40 CONOPS detailed comments 8  Local Stations Operations Ongoing dialogue requ red Noted

222 41 CONOPS detailed comments 8  Note the statement that The proposed station entrance provides mi igat on of some of the station 

capacity ssues.  - but for avo dance of doubt, the summary concur that the new PLATFORM 12 stat on 
entrance prov des mitigation for the mpacts of add tional pedestrian ingress  egress and movement 

around the stat on.  does not accurately summarise the Legion aud t and posit on for the need for 
operational and in rastructure improvements

N/A

223 42 CONOPS detailed comments 8 1 Queue management  As above  clarify who has pr macy and where are the handover points from 

one agency to another

To be detailed in the VOM after post planning planning

224 43 CONOPS detailed comments 8 3 Background demand  How would the app icant consider dedicated entrances or lanes or gatel ne 

capacity be separately made availab e for ocal / background users  How w ll th s be achieved and who s 

responsib e? It may not be feasib e to prevent MSG spectators or other background users from f nding 

routes to present to di ferent entrances

To be addressed through detailed des gn of new stat on entrance and through ref ne 

operational plans post p ann ng

225 44 CONOPS detailed comments 8 4 Station entrances  In order to ensure that the guest departure t mes can be achieved  it wi l be 

necessary or TfL to allocate sufficient gates at the key station entrances  Further information / dia ogue 

/ understanding: it s for station operators to manage the whole stat on safely and to determ ne any 

conf guration  This may be d fficult to achieve at times  especially if the station is busy during peak 

periods or at t mes of mu tiple events  No guarantees or assumptions on th s position  Other commen s 

elsewhere in main response on station capacity  crossflows  management etc

Noted

226 45 CONOPS detailed comments 8 5 Rail Safety Management  other responses on NR / LU / SFO respons bil ties and ro e of ra lway 

agreements and how applied for TfL / LU esp for safety requ rements of LU who have command and 

control duties at Stratford  LLDC would need to assure themselves that any mitigation can be secured

Noted

227 46 CONOPS detailed comments 8 6 Station management  many issues addressed in main response  TfL and MTR current holders of 

station safety cases to assess how to update these and addi ional resources and de ivery to ensure 

these can be updated

Noted
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228 47 CONOPS detailed comments 8 6 Operational p an  regardless of the security reasons  we would need urgent s ghting of th s 

document and / or to understand how / when it is rev sed

This re ers to the stat on operation plan which the Appl cant wi l support TfL etc re ine post

plann ng for event scenarios

229 48 CONOPS detailed comments 8 6 Step Free access  Northern TH not necessarily best  wi l depend on arrival (or departure) p atform / 

mode and any other proposed changes to SFA across stat on

Noted

230 49 CONOPS detailed comments 8 7 Redundancy  Disagree wi h statement re crowd management rather than transport capacity  This 

assumption implies that there is lots of capacity which s not always the case  Pro ess ona ly (and safely) 

managed is they key  esp on station management and handover / pr macy

Noted

231 50 CONOPS detailed comments 8 6 Redundancy  Reminder that Night Tube should not be relied upon to move large numbers of people  

there is a very limited serv ce and limited onward connec ions

Event f nish times now proposed at 2300 Mon Sat and 2230 Sun  with exception of when a 

ater f nish time s beneficial in c ash scenarios

232 51 CONOPS detailed comments 8 8   Last trains  other ongoing assessment of app icat on on fin sh times  capacity Event f nish times now proposed at 2300 Mon Sat and 2230 Sun  with exception of when a 

ater f nish time s beneficial in c ash scenarios

233 52 CONOPS detailed comments 8 8 1 Maryland Station  A so 7 7  points to need for external staff and if a ways in place  or if to be 

agreed or the f ex bil ty of event day external staff to re ocate from Strat ord area o Mary and to manage 

queue and f ows into station  Likely reliance on more MTR station staff to cover Maryland stat on

MSG staff in place to discourage use of Maryland Station  noting that t is not forecast to 

receive material demand in any case  Major contingency scenarios may necess tate use of 

Maryland  however rarity of these mean permanent staff upl ft not cons dered necessary

234 53 CONOPS detailed comments Append x 2 Scenarios  We w ll need to get into much more detail with applicant and others on these  

What are scenarios and (Congestion Control and Emergency Plans) CCEP processes to look at

Applicant to work wi h TfL and other stakeholders to undertake sensitivity testing post

plann ng

235 54 CONOPS detailed comments Append x 2 Scenarios  Variety of Sphere attendance 6 / 10 / 14 / 17 / 21 5 / 25  to assess if same or 

different numbers or how station works  or event users and background users  Main response refers to 

event capacities and contro s

Applicant to work wi h TfL and other stakeholders to undertake sensitivity testing post

plann ng

236 55 CONOPS detailed comments Appendix 2 Scenarios - Evacuation scenarios for Stratford stat on – exper ence from evacuation post a 
Stadium event and not being ab e to move external crowd management barriers quickly enough to set up 

an escape route away to eg Montfichet Road or Merid an Square  w ll need to be included in 

contingency planning

Applicant to work wi h TfL and other stakeholders to undertake sensitivity testing post

plann ng

237 56 CONOPS detailed comments Append x 2 Scenarios  Certainty over any barriers and management systems and effective permanence 

– esp f Westf eld br dge / TCLB access for any posts / barr ers / signage.
To be developed through further consu tation  des gn progress on and operat onal planning 

post p ann ng

238 57 CONOPS detailed comments Appendix 2 Scenarios - Meridian Square – has di ferent management, and may need extra queuing 
outside space  and the nterac ion with Southern TH

To be developed through further consu tation  des gn progress on and operat onal planning 

post p ann ng

239 58 CONOPS detailed comments Append x 2 Scenarios  Bridge spl ts and info  work out how Bridge 1 / 2 or 3 is spl t for advising 

returning passengers (esp f they can t physically use the same access point as from ingress)
To be developed through further consu tation  des gn progress on and operat onal planning 

post p ann ng

240 59 CONOPS detailed comments Append x 3  To add and update to VOM contents list from d scussions  o her sta ions  esp or how to 

define and secure for future work: 47  two bus stations at Stratford; Mary and station;

VOM to be developed in consultat on with stakeholders through to opening of venue

241 60 CONOPS detailed comments Append x 5  Mobi ity assistance  at G bbins Road  Although this s the current ocat on for London 

Stadium shutt e services  as part of comprehens ve station management  future arrangements for the 

station and Gibbins Road may preclude the potent al for an MSG shutt e service here  The distance / 

round trip tim ngs and potential frequency of services may be a fected by highway network condit ons

To be addressed through detailed mob lity ass stance p an

242 61 CONOPS detailed comments Append x 5  MSG w ll provide uni ormed staff o augment the in station mobi ity ass stance operation 

during ngress and egress  should the stat on operators agree with this proposal  Note that this wou d 

require addit onal LU / MTR / TOC sta f resource to meet / escort passengers to ex ts and any pre

book ng  external event staff would not be a lowed nto the stat on

To be addressed through detailed mob lity ass stance p an

243 62 CONOPS detailed comments Appendix 5 - Taxi – passengers don t just get set down at taxi ranks – ranks for taxis to ply for hire – so 
space for set down needs to be assured esp for ease of deploying a ramp  There are two bus stations  

And two ex sting taxi ranks

To be addressed through detailed mob lity ass stance p an
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From: Chris Goddard
To: Daniel Davies
Cc:  Anthony Hollingsworth;  
Subject: Re: MSG Sphere artistic content
Date: 05 May 2021 11:21:09

Thanks Dan

Yes happy to meet at 3 to discuss. 

Can you include  on the invitation if you haven’t already done so?

Thanks

Chris

Chris Goddard
Board Director
 
direct: 020 7004 1757
mobile: 07712 300728
e-mail: chris.goddard@dp9.co.uk
 
DP9 Ltd
100 Pall Mall
London
SW1Y 5NQ
 
telephone: 020 7004 1700 facsimile: 020 7004 1790 website: www.dp9.co.uk
 
This e-mail and any attachments hereto are strictly confidential and intended solely for the
addressee. It may contain information which is privileged. If you are not the intended addressee,
you must not disclose, forward, copy or take any action in relation to this e-mail or attachments.
If you have received this e-mail in error, please delete it and notifypostmaster@dp9.co.uk

On 5 May 2021, at 09:32, Daniel Davies <DanielDavies@londonlegacy.co.uk>
wrote:

 
Hi Chris,
 
Thanks for your email.
 
I think it's worth meeting this afternoon, even if only briefly, for us to set out
the principles under which any illumination of the sphere façade could be
acceptable in planning terms. I suspect its worth clarifying what driving our
approach.
 
On a separate note, happy to talk different peak hours, which I’m sure can be
agreeable. I can confirm that LLDC aren’t looking to sign off individual pieces
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
contain information which is privileged. If you are not the intended addressee, you must not disclose, forward, copy
or take any action in relation to this e-mail or attachments. If you have received this e-mail in error, please delete it
and notify postmaster@dp9.co.uk

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
communication in error, please contact me immediately by email or telephone and
then delete the e-mail and its attachments from your system. This email and any
attachments have been scanned for viruses by Symantec and on leaving the London
Legacy Development Corporation they were virus free. No liability will be incurred
for direct, special or indirect or consequential damages arising from alteration of the
contents of this message by a third party or as a result of any virus contained within
it or attached to it. The London Legacy Development Corporation may monitor
traffic data. For enquiries please call 020 3288 1800. 
London Legacy Development Corporation, Level 10, 1 Stratford Place, Montfichet
Road, London, E20 1EJ. 

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
Sent: 05 May 2021 16:48
To: LON < jacobs.com>;  < msg.com>; 

 < momentum-transport.com>;  < tfl.gov.uk>
Cc: danieldavies@londonlegacy.co.uk;  < momentum-transport.com>;

 < newham.gov.uk>; newham.gov.uk; 
< msg.com>; Chris Goddard <chris.goddard@dp9.co.uk>; 
< dp9.co.uk>;  < hsf.com>
Subject: RE: MSG Sphere - TFL Meeting
 
All – thanks.  Monday would also be difficult for us but the Tue 11 1230-1400 slot works best also for me
and   There may be one or two others in TfL from Network Performance who should also be
available or for me to get their latest views to feed in.  I’ll update who can attend that.
 

 

From: LON < jacobs.com> 
Sent: 05 May 2021 15:48
To:  < msg.com>;  < momentum-transport.com>; 

 < tfl.gov.uk>;  < tfl.gov.uk>
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
 

 
TfL’s times are most critical obviously, but for me, Monday looks very difficult, Tuesday 12.30-2 looks fine
and I could probably rearrange things 3.30-5.30 on Tuesday if necessary.
Regards

 | Jacobs | Director of Transport Planning
M: +44 (0)  | jacobs.com
Cottons Centre Cottons Lane | London SE1 2QG | United Kingdom
www.jacobs.com | LinkedIn | Twitter | Facebook | Instagram
 

From:  < msg.com> 
Sent: 05 May 2021 15:44
To:  < momentum-transport.com>;  < tfl.gov.uk>;

 < tfl.gov.uk>
Cc: danieldavies@londonlegacy.co.uk;  < momentum-transport.com>;

LON < jacobs.com>;  < newham.gov.uk>;
newham.gov.uk;  < msg.com>; Chris Goddard

<chris.goddard@dp9.co.uk>;  < dp9.co.uk>; 
< hsf.com>
Subject: [EXTERNAL] Re: MSG Sphere - TFL Meeting
 
I can move things to accommodate any of those times.

 
Get Outlook for iOS

From:  < momentum-transport.com>
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Sent: Wednesday, May 5, 2021 2:55:02 PM
To:  < tfl.gov.uk>;  < tfl.gov.uk>
Cc: danieldavies@londonlegacy.co.uk <danieldavies@londonlegacy.co.uk>; 
< momentum-transport.com>; jacobs.com
< jacobs.com>;  < newham.gov.uk>;

newham.gov.uk < newham.gov.uk>; 
< msg.com>;  < msg.com>; Chris Goddard
<chris.goddard@dp9.co.uk>;  < dp9.co.uk>; 
< hsf.com>
Subject: MSG Sphere - TFL Meeting
 

& 
 

 and  have offered some times for a meeting Monday/Tuesday next week to run
through the LBN comments which are echoed in the TfL response and seek to agree an
approach to mitigation. Given the extremely tight timescales now it would be greatly appreciated
if you and any of your necessary colleagues could make a slot during one of the following
periods:
 

Monday 10th - 12.00-14.00
Tuesday 11th - 12.30-14.00 & 15.30-17.30

 
Dates are being held for now but if you could let me know your preference at your earliest
convenience, that would be great.
 
We will circulate an agenda beforehand but anticipate the meeting will run through the key
issues concerning LBN as summarised in the recent TfL letter.
 
Regards
 
 

 
Director

    
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
accepts no liability for the content of this email, or for the consequences of any actions taken on the basis of the information provided. 
If you are not the named addressee you should not disseminate, distribute or copy this e-mail. If you are not the intended recipient you
are notified that disclosing, copying, distributing or taking any action in reliance on the contents of this information is strictly prohibited.
If you have received this email in error please notify the system manager or the sender immediately and delete this e-mail from your
system. 
​
Momentum Transport Planning Limited Registered in England No. 8234059 Registered Office: 27 Mortimer Street London W1T 3BL

-----Original Appointment-----
From:  < momentum-transport.com> 
Sent: 05 May 2021 14:58
To:    newham.gov.uk;  

  
Cc: danieldavies@londonlegacy.co.uk;   Chris Goddard; LON
Subject: MSG Sphere - LBN & TfL Meeting
When: 11 May 2021 12:30-14:00 (UTC+00:00) Dublin, Edinburgh, Lisbon, London.
Where: Microsoft Teams Meeting
 
Agenda to follow
________________________________________________________________________________

Microsoft Teams meeting
Join on your computer or mobile app
Click here to join the meeting

Learn More | Meeting options

________________________________________________________________________________
 

***********************************************************************************

The contents of this e-mail and any attached files are confidential. If you have received this email in
error, please notify us immediately at postmaster@tfl.gov.uk and remove it from your system. If
received in error, please do not use, disseminate, forward, print or copy this email or its content.
Transport for London excludes any warranty and any liability as to the quality or accuracy of the
contents of this email and any attached files.

 

Transport for London is a statutory corporation whose principal office is at 5 Endeavour Square,
London, E20 1JN. Further information about Transport for London’s subsidiary companies can be
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From:
To: Daniel Davies
Cc: Chris Goddard
Subject: MSG - night time views
Date: 14 May 2021 15:45:58
Attachments: 268732eb-b160-464a-a96d-b54a308dc025.png

3448 8491 210514.pdf

 
Hi Dan - further to our recent conversation, we understand you are considering the
brightness of the digital displays at 25 nits (pre curfew). For your information, the attached
night time Accurate Visual Representations prepared by Miller Hare show the sphere
façade at a brightness of 25 nits. This link contains a high res version of the images -
https://we.tl/t-QQOWOmRmKN
 
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
To:  Chris Goddard;   
Subject: NR and TfL comments
Date: 14 May 2021 19:33:01
Attachments: Land to the West of Angel Lane TfL further comments 210514 P.pdf

MSG Applications - NR Representations May 2021.pdf

In the event you haven’t already received this under separate cover.
 
Letters from TfL and NR
 
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
 

This communication and the information it contains is intended for the addressee only. It
may be confidential, legally privileged and protected by law. Unauthorised use, copying or
disclosure of any of it may be unlawful. If you have received this communication in error,
please contact me immediately by email or telephone and then delete the e-mail and its
attachments from your system. This email and any attachments have been scanned for
viruses by Symantec and on leaving the London Legacy Development Corporation they
were virus free. No liability will be incurred for direct, special or indirect or consequential
damages arising from alteration of the contents of this message by a third party or as a
result of any virus contained within it or attached to it. The London Legacy Development
Corporation may monitor traffic data. For enquiries please call 020 3288 1800. 
London Legacy Development Corporation, Level 10, 1 Stratford Place, Montfichet Road,
London, E20 1EJ. 

www.queenelizabetholympicpark.co.uk
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The outline MA is set out in Appendix 5 of the CONOPs and will be further developed and refined 

during the operational planning phase that follows planning consent. The MA will be incorporated 

into the Venue Operations Manual which forms a central component of the Premises License 

application that MSG will undertake post planning approval. 

 

The headlines of our MA provision are as follows. 

1. The MA is based on current legislation and best practice but with consideration of the 

future, in terms of the definitions of disability, guests who may have other mobility issues, 

the provision of enhanced vehicles and the use of technologies that can assist guests and 

operational staff alike. 

 

2. The guest experience starts as soon as they consider attending an event at MSG Sphere.  

By providing informed choices and straightforward explanations of the MA, guests can 

book their tickets with confidence that there will be provision for them and their group. 

The Blue Badge parking booking system will be aligned to the various ways guests can 

purchase event tickets. The booking system will be accessible to guests with different 

interface needs and preferences and will provide options as to how guests book spaces 

and communicate with us. Provision will also be made for guests with Blue Badge 

entitlement who do not pre book. The Pre arrival booking system will integrate with their 

ticket purchase and ensure guests and their groups understand what choices they have 

and helps MSG prepare for each event, in terms of resource provision. 

 

3. For guests arriving by public transport we will provide information provided by the 

Transport Operators to help them decide on optimal routes to the local transport nodes 

and onward to the venue and their return. 

 

4. For those guests who need to travel by car, we have two options for car parking. Our 

preferred option is to utilise spaces in the HS1 car park. The HS1 option allows greater 

flexibility on how the MA links the Blue Badge car parking to MSG Sphere, whilst also 

providing a straightforward pedestrian route to the Bridge 1 lift, as well as the shuttle 

service we will operate. HS1 has agreed to a number of viable locations for shuttle pick 

up and drop off points for guests, both on the ground and upper floors. There is also 

capacity at the HS1 Car Park to create a drop off location for those guests with mobility 

issues who choose to be driven to the venue. Irrespective of event activity at neighbouring 

venues and the level of visitation, the HS1 option provides more than enough dedicated 

Blue Badge parking. 

 

5. MSG is committed to providing a shuttle service to transport guests from the car park to 

drop off locations as close to the venue as is possible. The drop off locations on the 

highway are subject to further refinement during the relevant section 278 agreement 

discussions. This further refinement could include moving the drop off locations to the 

side of the road nearest to the venue, subject to wider design considerations. The exact 
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From:
To: Daniel Davies
Cc: Chris Goddard
Subject: RE: MSG Planning Catch up + Transport mitigation meeting.
Date: 19 May 2021 20:38:42

Hi Dan,
Further to our conversation last week, please see below for the response to the RVAA
competency point:
 
All the relevant planning considerations and policy requirements have been addressed by
competent and highly experienced consultants with extensive experience of assessing large
scale development proposals in London.
 
Relevant townscape, heritage and visual impact considerations are addressed in the
detailed assessment undertaken by , one of the leading practitioners in
London.
 
All relevant planning matters and policy requirements relating to residential amenity are
covered in the detailed application submissions, and have been undertaken by competent
and highly experienced consultants. These include noise, daylight/ sunlight, wind, solar
glare and privacy & overlooking.
 
In addition, at the request of LLDC the further assessment of residential visual amenity
considerations was coordinated by DP9, drawing on the existing information and included
additional information requested by LLDC comprising views of the MSG Sphere from
adjoining residential properties and an analysis of the proportion of views from a
predefined position occupied by the development. Accurate visual representations of a
sample of views from surrounding residential properties have been prepared by Miller Hare
to inform the assessment. The assessment was undertaken in accordance with the
Landscape Institute Technical Guidance (March 2019) in relation to residential visual
amenity assessments.
 
As LLDC is aware, impact on residential views is not a relevant planning consideration or a
policy requirement within the adopted Development Plan. Notwithstanding this, the visual
assessment concludes that the proposed development will not change the visual amenity of
a residential property to such an extent that it becomes a matter of ‘public interest’. In line
with the RVAA Guidance, it is therefore not necessary to consider visual amenity as part of
the wider residential amenity assessment.
 
We are confident that LLDC has all the relevant information required to comprehensively
assess any impacts of the proposed development on the amenity of surrounding residential
properties.
 
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
Sent: 12 April 2021 12:16
To:  < dp9.co.uk>; Chris Goddard <chris.goddard@dp9.co.uk>; 

 < londonlegacy.co.uk>
Cc: Anthony Hollingsworth <AnthonyHollingsworth@londonlegacy.co.uk>
Subject: MSG Planning Catch up + Transport mitigation meeting.
 
Hi 
 
Just checking in to see if there is a good time for us to have a catch up this week?
 
In the first instance I want to establish if the transport mitigation meeting scheduled for Friday
should go ahead? It’s not clear to me that the Platform 6& 8 modelling work been shared with
Network Rail/and or TfL? Or what timescales are you working to? Would be good for you to issue
an agenda asap for me to circulate if we think it’s useful to keep this time.
 
There are also other areas where we could probably do with a catch up. Namely:
 

3D light glow modelling
Position on Threshold increment – dazzle/glare for road drivers
Daylight sunlight
RVAA Competency response
Unite Student Accommodation Mitigation request – MSG Response needed
Definitive position on Advertising

 
There will be other areas, particularly transport mitigation and  coincident events where we’ll
need to further discussions but I suspect this can only take place if the outstanding matters
identified by TfL and Network Rail can be resolved.
 
If we could pick this up on a call later today that would be ideal, otherwise I’m around tomorrow.
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Let me know when works for you.
 
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
Cc:    ( msg.com); 
Subject: MSG Sphere - Upwardly Directed Light
Date: 24 May 2021 10:33:34

Hi Dan
 
Please find below a link to the note prepared by Point 2 on this issue, as discussed.
 
I trust this is of assistance, but please let me or Nicola at Point 2 know if you have any questions
 
Best Wishes
 
Chris
 
https://we.tl/t-JTfaWAGYru
 
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
Subject: MSG LBN Newham reps
Date: 07 June 2021 08:10:15
Attachments: LBN LPA MSG Consultation Response 18.11.20.pdf

Hi 
 
A copy of Newham’s more recent representation which was the source for much of the Friday’s
agenda in relation to employment obligations and air quality.
 
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
To: Chris Goddard;  Gillian Nicks
Cc:
Subject: FW: MSG Sphere - light assessments [DEN-UK_ACTIVE.FID5034394]
Date: 15 June 2021 11:04:25
Attachments: Letter LLDC - Light Assessments(78726700 1).PDF

Hi Chris,
 
We’ve just received this letter from Denton’s.
 
Not had a chance to read it yet, but would appreciate it if your team could review and submit a
response for us to consider. Ideally next week if possible.
 
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
Cc:    Gillian Nicks
Subject: RE: MSG Sphere - light assessments [DEN-UK_ACTIVE.FID5034394]
Date: 15 June 2021 11:54:00

Thanks Dan
 
Can you issue a provisional invitation for Friday morning on that basis?
 
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
Sent: 15 June 2021 11:39
To: Chris Goddard <chris.goddard@dp9.co.uk>
Cc:  < msg.com>;  < hsf.com>;

 < momentum-transport.com>; Gillian Nicks <gillian.nicks@dp9.co.uk>
Subject: RE: MSG Sphere - light assessments [DEN-UK_ACTIVE.FID5034394]
 
Hi Chris,
 
Meeting went well on Friday and are much closer to having an agreed position. We are looking
to get that to you this week. If it helps we can run your team through the headlines on Friday.
 
On conditions, we are waiting on responses from TfL and for Network Rail to issue us with their
suggested conditions.
 
In the event we don’t get this I’m prepared to release an initial draft of the conditions we have to
date. I’ll aim to get this to you by the close of play.
 
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
Sent: 15 June 2021 11:17
To: Daniel Davies <DanielDavies@londonlegacy.co.uk>
Cc:  < msg.com>;  < hsf.com>;

 < momentum-transport.com>; Gillian Nicks <gillian.nicks@dp9.co.uk>
Subject: RE: MSG Sphere - light assessments [DEN-UK_ACTIVE.FID5034394]
 
Thanks Dan
 
I have forwarded this to Point 2 to review/respond as necessary.
 
How did the meeting with TFL/NR go on Friday?
 
Conscious we have yet to receive their further response on the O/S issues, and/or any
draft conditions?
 
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
Sent: 15 June 2021 11:04
To: Chris Goddard <chris.goddard@dp9.co.uk>;  < dp9.co.uk>; Gillian
Nicks <gillian.nicks@dp9.co.uk>
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
To: Chris Goddard; Anthony Hollingsworth;    (E); 

LON
Cc:    Gillian Nicks
Subject: RE: MSG Sphere - light assessments [DEN-UK_ACTIVE.FID5034394]
Date: 17 June 2021 15:40:17
Attachments: 210615 MSG Conditions Tracker 0.0.xlsx

Hi Chris,
 
Draft planning conditions attached. Note that our consultants and legal are yet to comment on
these so with this caveat, please note they are a work in progress.  I’m also yet to receive
comments from Newham and TfL on the conditions proposed by momentum and to hear back
from Network Rail on their pre-commencement conditions.  
 
Happy to discuss once you’ve had a chance to digest how we want to go about agreeing these
and any others that fall out of our discussions.
 
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
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From: Gillian Nicks
To: Daniel Davies; Chris Goddard
Subject: RE: MSG Sphere - light assessments [DEN-UK_ACTIVE.FID5034394]
Date: 17 June 2021 18:20:36

Thanks Dan – likewise!
 
Word doc version sounds ideal for track changes– I expect we might want to order in
terms of trigger points too rather than just thematically though I can understand from your
perspective that maybe easier (but perhaps we can agree that’s how the final list would be
formed).
 
Suggest Chris and I have a think and will come back to you on it.
 
Kind regards,
 
Gillian.
 
Gillian Nicks
Associate Director
direct: 020 7004 1729 
mobile: 07795 397 619 
e-mail: gillian.nicks@dp9.co.uk
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
Sent: 17 June 2021 16:56
To: Chris Goddard <chris.goddard@dp9.co.uk>
Cc: Gillian Nicks <gillian.nicks@dp9.co.uk>
Subject: RE: MSG Sphere - light assessments [DEN-UK_ACTIVE.FID5034394]
 
Hi Chris,
 
It does look like a lot, but there is a lot of duplication. HS1 and Network Rail have a lot of overlap.
 
In terms of filtering through the conditions, by trigger, you can do this on the spreadsheet. You
can also sort by consultee i.e. so you can pull up NR, HS1, EA, Thames Water etc  
 
TfL have seen the conditions but  are yet to comment. They’re focus to date has been the
station.
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Newham haven’t seen the conditions but their main areas of concern largely captured by the
S106 topics discussed. I’ve been advised that they aren’t proposing to submit an updated
response to the application so I hadn’t expected them to engage on the conditions. They too
haven’t responded to the draft prepared by momentum.
 
The colour coding is more for me that it is for you as I’m still working through these. Yellow I
want /expect to come back to. Red is reminder that we still need to resolve the strategy around
planning drawings.
 
On Network Rail, I’ve just received their conditions so I can add these too.
 
As I aside, what I had hoped to do, but haven’t got round to is to have a word document with the
conditions that we can track change and use the spreadsheet as a tool to navigate through them.
I am however open to suggestions.
 
Gillian, we haven’t met, but I look forward to making your acquaintance soon. Lots to get
through.
 
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
Sent: 17 June 2021 16:15
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
 
Blimey-lots of them!
 
A lot to digest, and as previously discussed it will probably be helpful in due course to
organise them into pre commencement, pre above ground works, prior to occupation and
ongoing?
 
A few quick questions-
 
Have Newham/TFL seen/agreed these?
 
And what is the colour coding for-does red/yellow denote something?
 
On the NR pre commencement condition, Steve sent us a draft which looked ok at first
glance so hopefully this will be with you shortly if not already.
 
We are going to struggle to give a joined up response on these and s106 as and when we
see it by tomorrow, but we can make some progress and crucially we can now hopefully
understand TFL position!
 
See you tomorrow
 
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

Page 77 of 83



From:
To: mayor.private@london.gov.uk
Cc: Peter Hendy
Subject: MSG Sphere London
Date: 17 June 2021 19:11:00
Attachments: image003.png

Mayor Sadiq Khan 6.17.21.pdf

Dear Mayor,
 
Please find attached a letter regarding our plans for MSG Sphere London.
 
Don’t hesitate to let me know if you have any questions.
 
Kindest regards,

 

President
Email: @msg.com | Tel: 
 

 

This message may contain confidential, privileged or proprietary information of Madison
Square Garden Entertainment Corp. or its affiliates. If you have received this message in error,
please inform the sender by email and kindly delete the message. 
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
To: Chris Goddard; 
Cc: Daniel Davies; LON; 
Subject: MSG - station staffing and bus station controller notes
Date: 21 June 2021 11:45:06
Attachments: MSG - bus station controller further information 210621 p.pdf

MSG Station Staffing Uplift Note 210621 p.pdf

Chris, 
 
As requested please find attached two notes:
 

Station staffing – 4 page note, includes details of numbers staff per event and other notes and
assumptions in generating the annual assumptions and some very indicative costs per individual event
Bus Station Controller – 2 page note, setting out background and justification and costs for construction
and operation phases

 
I trust this gives further background for you to disseminate in your team.
 
Please let me know if there are any queries or clarifications on these.
 
Regards
 

 | Principal Planner
Spatial Planning (North) | City Planning
Mobile: 
Level 9 (9B4), 5 Endeavour Square, Westfield Avenue, Stratford E20 1JN 

tfl.gov.uk
 
Please note I work Monday – Thursday only, and currently working remotely.
 
For more information regarding the TfL Spatial Planning team, including TfL’s Transport assessment best practice
guidance and pre-application advice please visit
https://tfl.gov.uk/info-for/urban-planning-and-construction/our-role-in-planning?intcmp=3484
 
 

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
found on the following link: http://www.tfl.gov.uk/corporate/about-tfl/

 

Although TfL have scanned this email (including attachments) for viruses, recipients are advised to
carry out their own virus check before opening any attachments, as TfL accepts no liability for any
loss, or damage which may be caused by viruses.

***********************************************************************************

Page 81 of 83

Reg.13

Reg.13

Reg.13
Reg.13

Reg.13

Reg.13

Reg.13

Reg.13



From:  

Date: 21 June 2021 

Madison Square Garden - Bus Station Controller justification 
 

Extract from TfL letter 9 Feb 2021 - Bus network – Mitigation iv) 
“TfL considers that there will be the need for a dedicated Stratford City bus station 
controller (aside from other Montfichet Road event day stewards / marshalls) for 
the specific purpose of managing issues during any construction phase; pre-
opening operational planning; on operation managing the interfaces with crowds; 
operation of buses entering and leaving the bus stand and at bus stops; and other 
bus operational issues which may arise from passengers leaving the proposed 
development site and queuing to enter Stratford station. They would also have 
responsibility for liaison with TfL Network Management Control Centre and the 
venue control centre. It should be noted that Stratford Town centre bus station has 
a bus station controller on site 24 hours a day so no additional request is sought 
there - providing a Stratford City controller would be consistent with this and for the 
benefit of the applicant / to deal with impacts created. TfL will provide details of the 
request for which an annual salary for 1 FTE.” 

 
The role of a Bus Station Controller (BSC) is primarily customer facing to provide 
advice and assistance to passengers, for an area beyond the boundaries of the 
bus standing area to cover bus stops on Montfichet Road.  We are confident of the 
value of staff to support the construction period and event management 
requirements. Customers should have access to accurate information and 
assistance, and if there is service disruption be given up-to-date information, and 
know that staff are helpful, knowledgeable and empowered to assist whenever 
they need help. A BSC could not be provided by an external agency and would 
also have responsibility for liaison with TfL Network Management Control Centre 
and if agreed with the MSG venue control centre.  The provision of these posts 
would be equivalent to the applicant providing event management staff and taxi 
marshalls to provide assistance to MSG customers and background users. 
 
The Stratford City bus station currently operates without needing a BSC, where 
the existing format of stops on street and in the bus station operates efficiently. 
The bus station and access roads were required and designed as part of the 
Stratford City scheme with bus priority to reflect the importance the importance of 
the area to address access for staff and visitors to the shopping centre and the 
proximity for bus / rail interchange. 
 
Construction phase: As set out across the 9 February letter, TfL is concerned that 
there is a risk generated starting during the phases of MSG construction period to 
affect the operation of Montfichet Road and access to the bus station and the 
operation of the bus network in this area. Bus services would need to continue to 
serve Montfichet Road – routes could not easily be diverted to the town centre bus 
station or International bus stand (the latter may be undergoing development, 
subject to planning consent) – and we accept that there may be the need for 
temporary suspensions to bus stops and access in the area, which will require 
detailed Traffic Management.  
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During the Montfichet Road construction period a BSC will be needed on site 
seven days a week to assist members of the public during this period of disruption. 
To cover two morning and afternoon shifts across seven days a week three BSCs 
are required, at an annual figure of £116,367. The duration would need to be 
related to the duration of construction works on Montfichet Road until permanent 
bus stop facilities are in place.  
 
Operational phase: The CONOPS relies heavily on Montfichet Road for access 
from Bridges 1 (6% of MSG visitors) and 2 (53% of visitors) towards Montfichet 
Road for the new station entrance and as well as to bus stops to coaches, taxis 
and potentially private hire and private car pick up. The highway modelling to date 
shows queues and delays along Montfichet Road in the evening peak period. 
Montfichet Road must be kept open (barring any London Stadium event day 
closures) for the smooth operation of the highway network and bus network. The 
absence of a dedicated BSC would leave a gap in the necessary management of 
Montfichet Road which would be harmful to the safe and efficient operation of the 
bus network and worsen conditions for background users and MSG customers.  
 
A BSC will be required during the initial five years of the MSG Sphere. This will be 
to help facilitate the initial period of operation and any amendments to event 
management plans, and liaison with MSG event management staff. Based on the 
quantum and frequency of events for egress and ingress at the venue and the 
anticipated shift patterns of daytime and night staff depending on venue operation 
hours for matinees and evening events, this can be covered by 1 daytime BSC 
and one nighttime BSC (required for events finishing after 2200). The annual 
figure for these two posts is £85,541. 
 
It is more cost effective for an annual salary for defined full time members of staff 
rather than overtime from existing bus operation staff members elsewhere in East 
London. The need for such staffing commences before any MSG trips are 
generated during construction of the venue. Following venue opening the 
requirement for a BSC is not directly associated with the amount of MSG bus trips 
generated (c 430 for a full size event), but the cumulative effect of non-bus 
vehicular trips by private car, taxi and private hire using Montfichet Road to have 
localised effects on the operation of the bus network which will need to be 
managed as part of the comprehensive Event Management plans. 
 
We are satisfied this meets the relevant planning tests of being: 
 

• Necessary to make the development acceptable in planning terms - by 
mitigating construction impacts and an integral part of the event management 
plans for performance of the highway and bus network 

• directly related to the development proposals - during construction required by 
the development to construct bridges to Montfichet Road and necessary 
highway arrangements, and early years of operation of the venue for both MSG 
users and background users. 

• fairly and reasonably related - being sought only for the duration of the 
construction phase and an initial period of operation of the venue during venue 
operational hours. 
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